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Financial Highlights

MBREE

For the year ended 31 March
BE=ZA=+—BHLFE

2020 2019 Change
—E-EF —E-hF BE
HK$’000 HK$’000 %
FET FEIT
Revenue EER 982,835 1,209,200 -18.7%
Gross Profit EF 143,802 95,082 51.2%
Gross Profit% S ES 14.6% 7.9%
Net (Loss) Profit (CFEE) L F (18,164) 28,119 -164.6%
Net (Loss) Profit% (FEEE) M E -1.8% 2.3%
HK cents HK cents %
B JEN
(Loss) Earnings per share B (EE)&RF (5.4) 8.4 -164.3%
Dividend Per Share — Interim & BB E — FH 2 1
Dividend Per Share — Final iR 8 — RE 7 3
Dividend Per Share — Total BRRE — 8% 9 4 125.0%
As at 31 March
R=A=+—A”
2020 2019 Change
—E-EF —ZE-NF 2E
Notes Days Days
B it x X
Inventory Turnover Days GFEREXE *1 29 29 0
Trade Receivables Turnover Days [& Uk Z 5 B 30 & 8 X 1 2 50 76 -26
Trade Payables Turnover Days & & 5 B 30 & 88 X 2k 3 40 46 -6
Gearing Ratio EEBELE 4 2.7% 3.2% -0.5
Return on Equity [i% B8 4 2= 1] i K 5 -1.6% 2.5% -41
*1, Inventory turnover days is equal to the average of the opening and 1. BTEREXEESRBNEHARFEFHIH
closing inventory divided by the cost of sales and multiplied by the BRIASHER ANFRINEFRE
number of days for the year
*2. Trade receivables turnover days is equal to trade receivables divided 2. ERESESRAERBESERESEWER
by the revenue and multiplied by the number of days for the year BRALEBEREUNEZFRY
*3.  Trade Payable turnover days is equal to trade payables divided by B BENEZERBEXFESHREMNEZESERR
the cost of sales and multiplied by the number of days for the year BRUAEHEXNANBRAZFRY
4. Gearing ratio is equal to the total borrowings divided by the equity 4, BEABLENDEEEEGTERUAREEZS
5, Return on Equity is equal to the net (loss) profit after tax for the year 5, BREEZROBEEERARNFEE(CFEHER) R

divided by the average of opening and closing equity
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Letter to Shareholders

Management Discussion and Analysis

Business Review

The Group is engaged in design, manufacturing and trading of a
wide range of household electrical appliances.

For the year ended 31 March 2020, global business environment
continued to be difficult and competitive. Political and economic
uncertainties due to continuing Sino-US trade war and the recent
COVID-19 pandemic has resulted in weakened customer demands
and deteriorated business environment.

Our manufacturing facilities are all located in mainland China. After
the Chinese New Year holidays in late January 2020, all factories
were ordered shutdown by the China government to combat the
COVID-19 outbreak. Strict safety measures and travel tracking
for all employees and visitors were implemented as our factories
resumed operations in phases starting late February 2020. A
lot of our suppliers in mainland China were also affected by the
shutdown orders. Furthermore the shutdown and traffic restriction
of some cities in mainland China has caused disruption to our
material supply. On the demand side, following the resumption of
our manufacturing facilities came the impact of the shutdown of
European and US markets due to the COVID-19 pandemic. This has
resulted in order cancellations and delays in shipment of products
in the first quarter of year 2020.

During the year under review, sales turnover decreased by 19%
to HK$982.8 million. Sales turnover decreased across all markets.
Sales turnover to Europe decreased by 17% to HK$461.6 million
representing 47% of the Group’s sales turnover. Sales turnover to
Asia decreased by 39% to HK$169.8 million representing 17% of
the Group’s sales turnover. Sales turnover to America decreased
by 6% to HK$309.9 million representing 32% of the Group’s sales
turnover. Sales turnover to other markets decreased by 9% to
HK$41.5 million representing 4% of the Group’s sales turnover.
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Letter to Shareholders

Gross profit for the year ended 31 March 2020 increased by 51%
to HK$143.8 million. Gross profit margin increased from 8% to
15%. The improvement in gross profit margin was mainly due to
change in customer mix and product mix, relatively stable raw
material costs, tight cost control measures and depreciation in RMB

currency.

The Group continued to apply stringent control on all costs and
expenses. Selling and distribution expenses decreased by 23%
to HK$18.4 million. As a percentage to sales turnover, selling and
distribution expenses decreased from 2.0% to 1.9% compared to
last year. Administration expenses increased by 1% to HK$104.0
million. As a percentage to sales turnover, administration expenses

increased from 8.5% to 10.6% compared to last year.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group decided to
optimise and consolidate the existing manufacturing facilities. At
the time, our factories were located in two separate locations
in Huizhou, at Lilin and Hui Nan Hi-Tech Industrial Park. It was
decided that the operation of 2 factories located in Hui Nan Hi-
Tech Industrial Park would be relocated to Lilin. The reason for
the move was to better utilize resources and cut down cost. The
relocation procedures commenced in early April 2019. As such a
one-time provision of HK$18.6 milion was made as at 31 March

2019. The relocation process is now completed.

The site at Hui Nam Hi-Tech Industrial Park including the three
factory blocks with carrying value of RMB101,313,000 (equivalent
to HK$118,537,000) was reclassified as investment properties. This
was revaluated at 1 April 2019 at RMB199,100,000 (equivalent to
HK$232,947,000), resulting in a revaluation gain of HK$114,410,000
and a deferred tax of HKD28,603,000 in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in property revaluation reserve. At
31 March 2020, this investment properties was revaluated at
RMB200,500,000 (equivalent to HK$218,545,000) resulting in an
increase in fair value of HK$116,000 and a translation loss of
HK$15,943,000. Currently, one factory block has been leased out

since April 2019 to an independent third party.
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Letter to Shareholders

The sale and leaseback arrangement of the Group’s previous main
office at 12/F, Zung Fu Industrial Building, 1067 King’s Road, Hong
Kong resulted in an amortization of deferred income HK$17.6 million
for the year ended 31 March 2019. The lease was early terminated
at end of September 2018, and no such deferred income was
recorded for the year ended 31 March 2020.

The investment property located in Wanchai, Hong Kong was
revaluated at HK$275.0 million at 31 March 2020 (2019: HK$327.4
million) resulting in a decrease in fair value of HK$52.4 million in
the income statement.

Net loss for the year was HK$18.2 million (2019: profit HK$28.1
million). Net profit/(loss) margin decreased from 2.3% to -1.8%
compared to last year. If the change in fair value of investment
properties and the amortization of deferred income for both years
were segregated, the net profit for operations for the year ended
31 March 2020 would be HK$34.1 million as compared to a net
loss of HK$35.9 million in the previous year. The turn around in
the net profit for operations was mainly due to the improvement in
gross margin and tight cost control measures and depreciation in
RMB currency.

Prospects

The COVID-19 pandemic is unprecedented and the entire impact
has yet to be determined. The entire world has been affected with
different countries still in various stages of lockdown currently. The
outlook for the year remains highly uncertain. Customers are being
extremely cautious in their order placement. We expect a decrease
in the sales turnover for the current financial year.

During this difficult and challenging period, we will stay vigilant and
versatile in our manufacturing capacity and resources planning in
response to fluctuations in market demands. We would strive to
stay slim with stringent cost and expense control, and productivity
efficiency improvements. Meanwhile, persistence in quality products
and engineering and R&D capabilities would continue to be our
focus. We will seek growth opportunities through new customers
and new product categories as well as the mainland China
market and online sales channels. We will also look for business
opportunities to create higher value to our shareholders.
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Letter to Shareholders

With our prudent and pragmatic business approach, financial
strength and commitment to excel, we will strive on and tread
cautiously to ride through the current and coming difficulties and
challenges.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had total assets of HK$1,474.8
million (2019: HK$1,496.8 million) which was financed by current
liabilities of HK$245.6 million (2019: HK$324.5 million), long-term
liabilities and taxation of HK$62.8 million (2019: HK$38.4 million)
and shareholders’ equity of HK$1,166.4 million (2019: HK$1,133.9
million).

The Group continued to maintain a strong balance sheet and a
healthy liquidity position. As at 31 March 2020, the Group held
HK$656.8 million (2019: HK$558.6 million) in cash and bank
deposits. They were mainly placed in Renminbi and US dollar
short term deposits, except for temporary balances held in other
currencies as required pending specific payments. For the year
ended 31 March 2020, the Group generated net cash inflow from
operating activities of HK$117.9 million (2019: outflow HK$602,000).
As at the same date, total borrowings were HK$31.2 million (2019:
HK$36.3 million) and the gearing ratio (ratio of total borrowings to
shareholders’ equity) was 2.7% (2019: 3.2%).

We continue to apply stringent control over the working capital
cycle. The inventory balance as at 31 March 2020 decreased from
HK$76.2 million to HK$56.3 million. Inventory turnover maintained
at 29 days for both year. The trade receivables balance as at
31 March 2020 decreased from HK$250.5 million to HK$133.7
million. Trade receivables turnover decreased from 76 days to
50 days compared to last year. The trade payables balance as
at 31 March 2020 decreased from HK$140.8 million to HK$92.0
million. Trade payables turnover decreased from 46 days to 40
days compared to last year.
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Letter to Shareholders

Funding for day-to-day operational working capital and capital
expenditures are to be serviced by internal cash flow and
available banking facilities. For the year ended 31 March 2020,
the group invested HK$11.7 million (2019: HK$24.0 million) in
plant and machinery, moulds and tools, equipment, computer
systems and other tangible assets for expansion and upgrade
to our manufacturing facilities. The Group’s capital expenditures
were funded by internal resources and bank loans. With a healthy
financial position and available banking facilities, the Group is
able to provide sufficient financial resources for our current
commitments, working capital requirements, further expansions
of the Group’s business operations and future investment
opportunities, as and when required.

The majority of the Group’s assets and liabilities and business
transactions were denominated in Hong Kong dollars, US dollars,
Renminbi. Currently the Group does not implement hedging activity
to hedge against foreign currency exposure. However, we will
closely monitor foreign currency exposure and consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 March 2020, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities.

Employee and Remuneration Policies

As at 31 March 2020, the Group employed approximately 2,500
employees (2019: 3,200). The majority of our employees work
in the PRC. The Group remunerated our employees based on
their performances, experiences and prevailing market rates while
performance bonuses are granted on a discretionary basis. Share
options may also be granted to employees based on individual
performance and attainment of certain set targets.
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Letter to Shareholders

Tribute

Mr. Cheung Lun passed away during the year under review. Mr.
Cheung was the founder of the Group. He had been the Chairman
and Executive Director of the Company since listed in 1992, and
was re-designated as Non-Executive Director and appointed
as Honorary Chairman in 2017. It was due to his exceptional
entrepreneurship, forward thinking, diligence and longterm
commitment to employees, customers and suppliers that the Group
is where it is today. The Board deeply regrets his passing and
sincerely appreciates and treasures his invaluable contributions to
the Group.

Appreciation

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
express our sincere appreciation to our employees, shareholders
and business associates for their continual contribution and support
throughout the year.

Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie
Chairman

Hong Kong
29 June 2020
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Directors and Senior Management

Executive Directors

Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie, aged 62, was appointed as Chairman
of the Group on 17 March 2017 and joined the Group in 1984. She
obtained a degree in Bachelor of Science from Kingston University
London, England. She is responsible for formulating the Group’s
overall strategic planning and development.

Ms. Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie is the daughter of late Mr. Cheung
Lun, the former Honorary Chairman of the Group; sister of Mr.
Cheung Shu Wan, the Managing Director, Ms. Cheung Lai See,
Sophie, an Executive Director, Dr. Cheung Shu Sang, William, an
Executive Director and Mr. Cheung Shu Chun, Simon, the Director
of Cost Innovation.

Ms. Cheung is a Director of all subsidiaries of the Company. She is
also a Director of Unison Associates Limited and Allan Investment
Company Limited, controlling shareholders of the Company. As
at 31 March 2020, according to the register maintained by the
Company pursuant to section 352 of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFO”), Ms. Cheung had personal interest in 600,000
shares and The Cheung Lun Family Trust (the beneficiaries of which
include Ms. Cheung and other family members other than spouse)
directly and indirectly had interest in 156,349,960 shares. Details
of her interests are set out in the “Directors’ and Chief Executives’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures” of this report.

Cheung Shu Wan, aged 59, is the Managing Director of the Group
and joined the Group in 19883. He obtained a degree in Bachelor of
Science from the University of London, England. He is responsible
for the sales & marketing functions and the overall manufacturing
operations of the Group. He also assists the Chairman in corporate
strategic planning and development.

Mr. Cheung Shu Wan is the son of late Mr. Cheung Lun, the former
Honorary Chairman of the Group; brother of Ms. Cheung Lai Chun,
Maggie, the Chairman, Ms. Cheung Lai See, Sophie, an Executive
Director, Dr. Cheung Shu Sang, Wiliam, an Executive Director and
Mr. Cheung Shu Chun, Simon, the Director of Cost Innovation.
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Directors and Senior Management

Executive Directors (continueq)

Mr. Cheung is a Director of all subsidiaries of the Company. He is
also a Director of Unison Associates Limited and Allan Investment
Company Limited, controlling shareholders of the Company. As
at 31 March 2020, according to the register maintained by the
Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, Mr. Cheung had
personal interest in 49,695,335 shares and The Cheung Lun Family
Trust (the beneficiaries of which include Mr. Cheung and other
family members other than spouse) directly and indirectly had
interest in 156,349,960 shares. Details of his interests are set out in
the “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short Positions
in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures” of this report.

Cheung Lai See, Sophie, aged 57, is an Executive Director of the
Group and joined the Group in 1995. She obtained a degree in
Bachelor of Science from the University of London, England and a
master degree in Business Management from the City University,
England. She is responsible for the financial and administration
functions of the Group.

Ms. Cheung Lai See, Sophie is the daughter of late Mr. Cheung
Lun, the former Honorary Chairman of the Group; sister of Ms.
Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie, the Chairman, Mr. Cheung Shu Wan,
the Managing Director, Dr. Cheung Shu Sang, William, an Executive
Director and Mr. Cheung Shu Chun, Simon, the Director of Cost
Innovation.

Ms. Cheung is a Director of all subsidiaries of the Company. She is
also a Director of Unison Associates Limited and Allan Investment
Company Limited, controlling shareholders of the Company.
As at 31 March 2020, according to the register maintained by
the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, Ms. Cheung
had personal interest in 1,258,000 shares and The Cheung Lun
Family Trust (the beneficiaries of which include Ms. Cheung and
other family members other than spouse) directly and indirectly
had interest in 156,349,960 shares of the Company. Details of
her interests are set out in the “Directors’ and Chief Executives’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures” of this report.
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Directors and Senior Management

Executive Directors (continueq)

Cheung Shu Sang, William, aged 55, is an Executive Director and
joined the Group in 1994. He holds a BSc degree in Computing
Science and a MSc degree in Management Science, both at
Imperial College London. He also holds a PhD degree in Automation
from the University of Bristol, and is a member of The Hong Kong
Institution of Engineers. He is in charge of engineering, research
and development functions, and also management of intellectual
property/patent application.

Dr. Cheung Shu Sang, Wiliam is the son of late Mr. Cheung Lun, the
former Honorary Chairman of the Group; brother of Ms. Cheung Lai
Chun, Maggie, the Chairman, Mr. Cheung Shu Wan, the Managing
Director, Ms. Cheung Lai See, Sophie, an Executive Director and
Mr. Cheung Shu Chun, Simon, the Director of Cost Innovation.

Dr. Cheung is a Director of Allan Trading (HK) Company Limited
and Total Profits Limited, all being subsidiaries of the Company.
He is also a director of Allan Investment Co. Ltd., a controlling
shareholder of the Company (as defined in the Listing Rules). As
at 31 March 2020, according to the register maintained by the
Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, Dr. Cheung has
personal interest in 900,000 shares and The Cheung Lun Family
Trust (the beneficiaries of which include Dr. Cheung and other family
members other than spouse) directly and indirectly has interest
in 156,349,960 shares. Details of his interests are set out in the
“Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short Positions in
Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures” of this report.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Choy Wai Sheun, Susan, aged 56, was appointed as an
Independent Non-Executive Director on 29 August 2019. She
obtained her bachelor’'s degree of accounting and financial analysis
from University of Newcastle Upon Tyne (UK) in 1985 and a
postgraduate diploma from University of New England (Australia)
in 1988. She is qualified as a member of both CPA Australia and
Hong Kong Institute of CPAs.

Lai Ah Ming, Leon, aged 63, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director in December 1995. He is a solicitor
majoring in commercial and property works.
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Directors and Senior Management

Independent Non-Executive Directors
(Continued)

Lo Chung Mau, aged 59, was appointed as an Independent Non-
Executive Director in November 1997. Professor Lo is a surgeon
and is currently Hospital Chief Executive of the University of Hong
Kong-Shenzhen Hospital, and the Chin Lan Hong Professor and
Chair of Hepatobiliary and Pancreatic Surgery of the University of
Hong Kong.

Senior Management

Cheung Shu Chun, Simon, aged 60, is the Director of Cost
Innovation and joined the Group in 1983. He obtained a degree in
Bachelor of Science from the University of Wales, England. He is
responsible for the purchasing and sourcing functions of the Group.

Mr. Cheung Shu Chun, Simon is the son of late Mr. Cheung Lun, the
former Honorary Chairman of the Group; brother of Ms. Cheung Lai
Chun, Maggie, the Chairman, Mr. Cheung Shu Wan, the Managing
Director, Ms. Cheung Lai See, Sophie, an Executive Director and
Dr. Cheung Shu Sang, William, an Executive Director.

Mr. Cheung is a director of Allan Electric Mfg. Limited, Allan
International Limited, Allan Plastic Mfg. Limited, Allan Trading (HK)
Company Limited, Artreal Manufactory Limited, Ever Sources
Investment Limited, Ngai Shing (Far East) Plastic & Metalwares
Factory Ltd., Warran Electric Manufacturing Limited, all being
subsidiaries of the Company. He is also a director of Allan
Investment Co. Ltd., a controlling shareholder of the Company (as
defined in the Listing Rules). Mr. Cheung is one of the beneficiaries
of The Cheung Lun Family Trust (the beneficiaries of which include
Mr. Cheung and other family members other than spouse) which
indirectly has interest in 156,349,960 shares of the Company.

Chung Chi Yin, aged 57, is the Director of Engineering and joined
the Group in 1990. He obtained a degree in Bachelor of Science
in Product Design and Technology from The Open University of
Hong Kong. He is responsible for the product development of the
Group.
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Directors and Senior Management

Senior Management (continued)

Kwok Ka Lee, Carrie, aged 52, is the Director of Manufacturing
and joined the Group in 1990. She obtained a degree in Bachelor
of Business (Transport and Logistics Management) from Royal
Melbourne Institute of Technology. She is responsible for the
manufacturing management and control function of the Group.

Li Wai Ho, aged 56,
and joined the Group in 2012. He obtained a master degree

is the Director of Sales and Marketing

in management from Hong Kong Polytechnic University and a
bachelor degree in engineering from Manchester University in
United Kingdom. He has over 17 years of experience in various
functions in multinational corporation. He is responsible for sales
and marketing function of the Group.

Li Wing Kong, aged 60,
and joined the Group in 2013. He obtained a Higher Diploma

is the Director of Quality Assurance

of Electrical Engineering from Hong Kong Polytechnic. He is
responsible for the Quality Assurance function of the Group.

Tsang Wing Tong, Michelle, aged 53, is the Director of
Manufacturing and joined the Group in 1987. She is responsible for

the manufacturing management and control function of the Group.

Wong Lai Yung, aged 58, is the Company Secretary and Finance
and Account Manager of the Group and joined the Group in 2006.
She holds a master degree in Business Administration and a master
degree in Corporate Governance from The Open University of Hong
Kong. She also obtained her master degree in Economics from
Jinan University, PRC. Ms. Wong is currently a fellow member of
The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Certified Tax
Adviser of The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. She is responsible
for the Company’s secretarial duties and financial and accounting
aspects of the Group.

Wong Mei Lin, aged 57, is the Director of Administration and
Personnel and joined the Group in 2000. She obtained a Higher
Certificate in Company Secretaryship and Administration from Hong
Kong Polytechnic University. She is responsible for the human
resources and administration management of the Group.
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Directors’ Report

The directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2020.

Principal Activities

The Company acts as an investment holding company and provides
corporate management services. The activities of its subsidiaries
are set out in Note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

Business Review

A review of the Group’s business during the year, including an
analysis using financial key performance indicators, the principal
risks and uncertainties faced by the Group, important events
affecting the Group and an indication of likely future development
of the Group’s business can be found in “Financial Highlights” set
out on page 4, “Letter to Shareholders” set out on Pages 5 to
10 and “Financial Risk Management objectives and policies” (Note
29b) set out on pages 126 to 137 of this annual report.

Relationship with Stakeholders

The success of the Group depends on the support from key
stakeholders which comprise customers, suppliers, employees and
shareholders.

Customers

The Group’s major customers are companies selling household
electrical appliances under well-known brand names. The Group
maintains long-term and good relationship with its customers. The
Group strives to provide excellent service and quality products to
our customers.

Suppliers

Supply chain is a critical aspect of our operations. The Group
maintains long-term and good relationship with its suppliers. The
Group selects its suppliers based on assessment criteria including,
among others, cost, quality, experience, capability, capacity,
sustainability and ethical behavior. The Group requires all suppliers
to comply with relevant manufacturing and safety standards. The
Group has communicated to all the suppliers of the Group’s strict
compliance to anti-bribery which is also required to be observed
by all suppliers.
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Directors’ Report

Relationship with Stakeholders (continued)

Employees

Employees are one of the most valuable assets of the Group.
The Group provides competitive remuneration package together
with safe and harmonious workplace. In-house and external
trainings and seminars are provided to employee for their business
and personal development. Recreational activities are organized
periodically and employees are encouraged to participate in
volunteer work. The Group has been nominated and awarded

Caring Company since 2007.

Shareholders

The Group endeavors to maximize the return to its shareholders.
The Group strives to achieve profit growth and stable dividend
payouts taking into account the business development needs and
financial health of the Group.

Environmental Policies

The Group recognizes the importance of achieving environmental
sustainability. The Group is committed to comply with the relevant
environmental standards and policies related to its business
operations in the PRC and Hong Kong. The manufacturing sites in
the PRC and our head office in Hong Kong are certified with the
ISO 14001:2004 standard for environmental management system.
The Group incorporates the Reduce, Reuse and Recycle principle
and implements environmental-friendly measures in operations and
workplaces to achieve efficient use of resources, waste reduction
and energy saving.

In accordance with Rule 13.91 and the Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide contained in Appendix 27
of the Listing Rules, the Company’s Environmental, Social and
Governance Report will be available on our website within three
months from the publication of this annual report.

Compliance with laws and regulations

For the year ended 31 March 2020, there was no material breach of
or non-compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by the
Group that has a significant impact on the business and operations
of the Group.
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Directors’ Report

Directors’ Interests in Competing
Business

During the year, none of the Directors was interested in any
business which competed or was likely to compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the business of the Group.

Results and Dividends

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2020 and
the Group’s financial position at that date are set out in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements on pages 49 to 51.

An interim dividend of HK2 cent per ordinary share amounting to
HK$6,709,000 in aggregate was paid to the ordinary shareholders
during the year. The directors now recommend the payment of
a final dividend of HK7 cents per ordinary share in respect of
the current year to the ordinary shareholders on the register of
members on 4 September 2020, amounting to HK$23,480,000 in
aggregate.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The percentage of purchases and sales attributable to the Group’s
largest suppliers and customers are as follows:
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At no time during the year did a director, an associate of a director
or a shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) has
an interest in any of the Group’s five largest suppliers or customers.
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Directors’ Report

Five Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 152 of the annual
report.

Share Capital

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in Note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Purchase, Redemption or Sale of Listed
Securities of the Company

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries

purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed

securities.

Distributable Reserves of the Company

In addition to the retained profits, under the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda (as amended), the contributed surplus account of
the Company is available for distribution. However, the Company
cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of

contributed surplus if:

(@ it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities
as they become due; or

(b)  the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than
the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and
share premium account.

In the opinion of the directors, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution to shareholders as at 31 March 2020 comprised the
retained profit of HK$329,107,000 (2019: HK$263,176,000).
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Directors’ Report

Investment Properties

As at 31 March 2020, principal properties held for investment
purposes are as follows:

(@) Investment Properties in Hong Kong
Address:

—  9th Floor, Capital Centre, No. 151 Gloucester Road,
Hong Kong

—  Car Parking Space No. 303 on 3rd Floor, Capital
Centre, No. 151 Gloucester Road, Hong Kong

—  Car Parking Space No. 304 on 3rd Floor, Capital
Centre, No. 151 Gloucester Road, Hong Kong

Lot No.:

—  The Remaining Portion of Section A of the Inland Lot
No. 2755

—  The Remaining Portion of Inland Lot No. 2755
Existing Use: Office rental
Lease Term: Long term

(b) Investment Properties in the PRC
Address:

No. 6, Jin Da Road, Hui Nan Hi-Tech Industrial Park,
HuiAo Highway, Huizhou, Guangdong, The PRC

Lot No.: Not applicable
Existing Use: Factory rental
Lease Term: Long term

Details of the movement in investment properties of the Group
during the year are set out in Note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Directors’ Report

Property, Plant and Equipment

During the year, the Group spent approximately HK$11.7 million
on the acquisition of property, plant and equipment principally to
expand and upgrade its manufacturing facilities. Details of these
and other movements during the year in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in Note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Directors and Directors’ Service
Contracts

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive Directors

Ms. Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie (Chairman)
Mr. Cheung Shu Wan (Managing Director)
Ms. Cheung Lai See, Sophie

Dr. Cheung Shu Sang, William

Non-Executive Director
Mr. Cheung Lun (Honorary Chairman)
(passed away on 16 February 2020)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Dr. Chan How Chun, Rita (resigned on 6/8/2019)

Ms. Choy Wai Sheun, Susan (appointed on 29/8/2019)
Mr. Lai Ah Ming, Leon

Professor Lo Chung Mau

According to bye-law 87(1) and 86(2) of the Company’s Bye-laws,
Ms. Cheung Lai See, Sophie and Ms. Choy Wai Sheun, Susan shall
retire at the Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election.

The term of office of each director (except for the Chairman of the
Board and/or the Managing Director) is the period up to his/her
retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.

None of the directors of the Company proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming Annual General Meeting has any service contract
with the Company or any of its subsidiaries not determinable
by the employing company within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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Directors’ Report

Directors’ and Chief Executives’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares,

Underlying Shares and Debentures

At 31 March 2020, the interests and short positions of the
directors and the chief executives and their associates in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations, as recorded in the register maintained by
the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFQ”), or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”)
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers, were as follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company

Name

®E
Mr. Cheung Lun (Note 2)
Rim k&M 7#2)

Mr. Cheung Shu Wan
REREE

Ms. Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie
REY T

Ms. Cheung Lai See, Sophie
REHMZ L

Dr. Cheung Shu Sang, William
REEEL

Capacity

&t

Founder of discretionary trust

REFRZIKILA

Beneficial Owner
EREEA
Beneficiary of trust
FREXEA

Beneficial Owner
ERHEA
Beneficiary of trust

RREXEA

Beneficial Owner
EnEBA
Beneficiary of trust
FRARHEA

Beneficial Owner
ERHEA
Beneficiary of trust

FRREA

Number of ordinary shares held

EEE®RE

EERTETBRAERRSD
HERD EREZEZR
KRB

RZZEZZEF=F=F+—H ARFEERE
ETHRABREBEALTREAAR R EEE
NEWRG  BEARNMRERZFHEEER
SR BRERNARFILZ B H K BEEHIZE352
BREBTF2ECMANERSAR - HRIE
B TAZESETESRFHRESTAZR
EEMNEARAREBHMARZIMER AR
(B RFTD M EzRA BT

AARBREEIOET ZEBER

Approximate%

FELERREA of the issued
Personal share capital of
interest  Other interest Total the Company
ERARERAT
R4 2BH
AR Hitt i 2 By BOl
- 156,349,960 156,349,960 46.61%
49,695,335
166,349,960 206,045,295 61.43%
(Note 1)
(Brit1)
600,000
156,349,960 156,949,960 46.79%
(Note 1)
(Hrit1)
1,258,000
166,349,960 167,607,960 46.99%
(Note 1)
(#rit1)
900,000
156,349,960 157,249,960 46.88%
(Note 1)
(Hrit1)
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Directors’ Report

Directors’ and Chief Executives’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares,

Underlying Shares and Debentures
(Continued)

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company (Continued)

Note:

(1) The references to 156,349,960 shares relate to the same block of
shares in the Company, of which 134,821,960 shares are held by
Allan Investment Co. Limited (“AICL"), 14,958,000 shares are held by
Commence Investment Limited (“CIL”) and 6,570,000 shares are held
by Unison Associates Limited (“UAL"). AICL and CIL are owned as
to 89% and 100% respectively by UAL. The late Mr. Cheung Lun is
the settlor of The Cheung Lun Family Trust (“Trust”). Credit Suisse
Trust Limited as trustee of the Trust holds 100% of the shareholding
of UAL and the discretionary beneficiaries of the Trust are, among
others, Mr. Cheung Shu Wan, Ms. Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie, Ms.
Cheung Lai See, Sophie and Dr. Cheung Shu Sang, William.

2 Mr. Cheung Lun passed away on 16 February 2020.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors or chief executives,
nor their associates, of the Company had, as at 31 March 2020,
any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which would have to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or
short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO), or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO, or which were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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Directors’ Report

Share Option Scheme

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set out in
Note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

No options have been granted since the adoption of the scheme.

Arrangement to Purchase Shares or
Debentures

Other than the share option scheme set out in Note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements, at no time during the year was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements
to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

Appointment of Independent
Non-Executive Directors

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange. The Company considers all of
the independent non-executive directors are independent.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions,
Arrangement and Contracts of
Significance

Allan International Holdings Limited (“AlHL”), entered into a tenancy
agreement with Ardent Investment Limited (“Ardent”), a subsidiary
of a substantial shareholder of the Company, pursuant to which
Ardent granted to AIHL a tenancy in respect of certain premises
on Unit B, 23rd Floor, Chaiwan Industrial Centre, 20 Lee Chung
Street, Chai Wan, Hong Kong at a monthly rent of HK$123,800.
The tenancy agreement was for a term of one year commenced
from 1 September 2019. The total amount of rent paid for the year
by the Group in respect of this agreement was HK$1,485,600.

24 Allan International Holdings Limited R BB £ E AR A 5

EEE®RE

BRES

ARAZ BB ERNES
EM T30 °

BB HE

Bzt Bl A R EE B RER D

BERODIEZ2ZH

BRENGE M mESEM 302 B ETE
S - AR SEAE B A Tﬁiﬁq*ﬁ%ﬁi/,\
ERAZH EARBESTAEBALQA L
HM AR ZBRMDHESME S -

BUFHITESZERE

ARBCEERBIUIFATESTSEH L 2
RE RAEMEBXAESFLMARA T LT
MAIDFEINBERE 2B - ARARR
PEBUFNTESFHR/BIULAL

EEREARS REREHN
ZHE i

THRBEEEERAR(EM)EAQRE
ERROMBARIEREREBRAR ([HED)
ﬂj—ﬁﬁ%'mﬁaﬁ%’%%%@mﬁ
SelE R Mook g T ¥ KE231EB
a&%%%ﬂ%ﬁm‘ﬁﬁmmw%ﬁo%
MR- NFLA—BEGB A —F -
AEERZBOREAFARN2HSRER
1,485,600/8 7T °



Directors’ Report

Directors’ Interests in Transactions,
Arrangement and Contracts of
Significance (continuea)

AIHL, entered into a tenancy agreement with Ardent, pursuant to
which Ardent granted to AIHL a tenancy in respect of car park No.
35, Chaiwan Industrial Centre, 20 Lee Chung Street, Chai Wan,
Hong Kong at a monthly rent of HK$3,500. The tenancy agreement
was a term of one year commenced from 1 November 2019. The
total amount of rent paid for the year by the Group in respect of
this agreement was HK$42,000.

AIHL, entered into a tenancy agreement with Ardent, pursuant to
which Ardent granted to AIHL a tenancy in respect of car park No.
33, Chaiwan Industrial Centre, 20 Lee Chung Street, Chai Wan,
Hong Kong at a monthly rent of HK$3,500. The tenancy agreement
was a term of one year commenced from 1 November 2019. The
total amount of rent paid for the year by the Group in respect of
this agreement was HK$17,500.

Conan Electric Manufacturing Limited (“Conan”), a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a tenancy agreement
with Fair Pacific Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of AICL, a
substantial shareholder of the Company, pursuant to which Fair
Pacific Limited granted to Conan a tenancy in respect of certain
land in Lilin, Zhongkai Hi-Tech Industrial Development Zone,
Huizhou City, Guangdong, the PRC at a monthly rent of HK$82,000.
The tenancy agreement was for a term of one year commenced
from 1 April 2019. The total amount of rent paid for the year by
the Group in respect of this agreement was HK$984,000.

Allan Plastics Mfg., Limited (“APML”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, entered into a tenancy agreement with Income Village
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of AICL, pursuant to which
Income Village Limited granted to APML a tenancy in respect of
certain premises in Lilin, Zhongkai Hi-Tech Industrial Development
Zone, Huizhou City, Guangdong, the PRC at a monthly rent of
HK$17,000. The tenancy agreement was for a term of three years
commenced from 1 April 2017. The total amount of rent paid for the
year by the Group in respect of this agreement was HK$204,000.
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Directors’ Report

Directors’ Interests in Transactions,
Arrangement and Contracts of
Significance (continuea)

Karan Electric Manufacturing Limited (“Karan”), a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a tenancy agreement
with AICL, pursuant to which AICL granted to Karan a tenancy
in respect of certain premises in Lilin, Zhongkai Hi-Tech Industrial
Development Zone, Huizhou City, Guangdong, the PRC at a
monthly rent of HK$75,000. The tenancy agreement was for a term
of three years commenced from 1 April 2017. The total amount of
rent paid for the year by the Group in respect of this agreement
was HK$900,000.

The above transactions were approved by the independent non-
executive directors and were conducted on normal commercial
terms in the ordinary course of business of the Group and in
accordance with the terms of the agreement governing such
transactions that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Other than disclosed above, no transactions, arrangement and
contracts of significance, to which the Company, its holding
company, fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries was a party and in
which a director or a connected entity of a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Emolument Policy

Salary package for employees are structured by reference to
market conditions, staff’'s experience and individual performance.
Other benefits offered by the Group included medical insurance,
mandatory provident fund scheme, training subsidies, share option
scheme and discretionary bonus.

The emoluments of the directors and senior management are
recommended by the remuneration committee of the Company
and decided by the Board, with reference to the market rates,
commitment, contribution and their duties, and responsibilities with
the Group. Details of directors’ remuneration are set out in details
in Note 9 to the financial statements.
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Directors’ Report

Emolument Policy continueq)

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive
to the directors and eligible employees. Details of the scheme are
set out in Note 30 to the financial statements.

Substantial Shareholders

As at 31 March 2020, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO
shows that other than the interests disclosed above in respect of
certain directors and chief executive, the following shareholders had
notified the Company of relevant interests and long/short positions
in the issued share capital of the Company.

Long positions of substantial shareholders in the shares of the
Company

EEE®RE

HMBEK

ARARBRMN—BERETEEALTES
LEBEWRREREZHE - 5T 2 FBIHRMB
WEEMFE30 -

FERR

RZZEZEF=A=+—H HBEXEBEST
EEMREI  BREFRHEGHIFEI361E
GEARNARTEREMEZMAT UK
BERFETHRABEMNSEARAFEEELAR
RIEBITRMPEENHEBAERS RITE X

A
B e

TERRREARAROZHER

Number of Approximate %
Name of shareholder Capacity ordinary shares of shareholding
HREZ
IR E B g4 ZRRKRMG BABEDE
Mr. Cheung Lun (deceased) Founder of discretionary trust 156,349,960 46.61%
o fa 5T A (B D EREFEFT KA
Credit Suisse Trust Limited Trustee 156,349,960 46.61%
EFEA
UAL Held by controlled corporation 149,779,960 44.65%
FRiE®l 2 RElFFA
Beneficial Owner 6,570,000 1.96%
EmBEAA
AICL Beneficial Owner 134,821,960 40.19%
GG ) EmEAA
Webb, David Michael Beneficial Owner 10,777,000 3.21%
EmEAA
Held by controlled corporation 26,007,000 7.75%
Frizslz AR1##HE (Note)
(%7 7)
Preferable Situation Assets Limited Beneficial Owner 26,007,000 7.75%
EmEAA (Note)
(%7 7)
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Directors’ Report

Substantial Shareholders (continueq)

Long positions of substantial shareholders in the shares of the

Company (Continued)

Note:

The reference to 26,007,000 shares above are held by Preferable Situation
Assets Limited, a company 100% controlled by Mr. Webb, David Michael.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2020, the Company has
not been notified by any persons (other than directors or chief
executives of the Company) who had interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of

the SFO.

Donations

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations

amounting to approximately HK$72,000.

Corporate Governance

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices. Information on the corporate
governance practices of the Company is set out in the “Corporate

Governance Report” on pages 30 to 41.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws/articles of association, or the laws of Bermuda, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis

to existing shareholders.
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Directors’ Report EEERE

Sufficiency of Public Float EHARNRERE

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout ARRRBE_ZT_TEF=-A=T—HLEEFR
the year ended 31 March 2020. —BEHARBLEMAUMREZARBERE o

Auditor = EEm

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to REERRBAFRE L BeRE—BLAH
re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the R BEZTEDBERASHMITAERR

Company. A Z EAD -

On behalf of the Board AEZEm

Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie REY

Chairman FE

Hong Kong HAE

29 June 2020 —EZTFRAZTIH
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company recognizes that good corporate governance is vital
to the success of the Group and the sustained development of the
Group. The Company aims at complying with, where appropriate,
all code provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code
(the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the
principles and the code provisions as set out in the CG Code. The
Company has, throughout the year ended 31 March 2020, applied
and complied with most of the code provisions save for certain
deviations from the code provisions in respect of code provisions
A.41, A4.2, A51, and A.6.7, details of which are explained below.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. The Company has
made specific enquiry to all directors regarding any non-compliance
with the Model Code during the year under review and they have all
confirmed that they had fully complied with the required standard
set out in the Model Code.

Board of Directors

The Board comprises of four Executive Directors, being Ms.
Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie (Chairman), Mr. Cheung Shu Wan
(Managing Director), Ms. Cheung Lai See, Sophie and Dr. Cheung
Shu Sang, William; and three Independent Non-Executive Directors,
being Ms. Choy Wai Sheun, Susan, Mr. Lai Ah Ming, Leon and
Professor Lo Chung Mau. Biographical details, which include
relationships among members of the Board, are provided in the
“Directors and Senior Management” section of this Annual Report.
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Corporate Governance Report

Board of Directors (continued)

There is a clear division of responsibilities between the Board and
the management. The Board is responsible for providing high-level
guidance and effective oversight of the management while day-to-
day management of the Group is delegated to the management
team of each respective subsidiary. Generally speaking, the Board
is responsible for:

° Formulating the Group’s long term strategy and monitoring
the implementation thereof

° Approval of interim and year end dividend

° Reviewing and approving the annual and interim reports
° Ensuring good corporate governance and compliance

° Monitoring the performance of the management

° Reviewing and approving any material acquisition and assets
disposal

The Board authorises the management to carry out the strategies
that have been approved.

The Board meets regularly at least four times a year and additional
meetings or telephone conferences are convened as and when the
Board considers necessary. During the year, four board meetings
were held. Details of the Directors’ attendance record in the year
are as follows:

Attendance/

Executive Directors No. of meeting

Ms. Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie 4/4
Mr. Cheung Shu Wan 4/4
Ms. Cheung Lai See, Sophie 4/4
Dr. Cheung Shu Sang, William 4/4

Non-Executive Director
Mr. Cheung Lun
(deceased on 16/2/2020) 0/4
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Corporate Governance Report

Board of Directors (continued)

Attendance/

Independent Non-Executive Directors No. of meeting

Dr. Chan How Chun, Rita

(resigned on 6/8/2019) 1/4
Ms. Choy Wai Sheun, Susan

(appointed on 29/8/2019) 3/4
Mr. Lai Ah Ming, Leon 4/4
Professor Lo Chung Mau 4/4

The Company has complied with the Rules 3.10(1), 3.10(2) and
3.10A of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at
least three Independent Non-Executive Directors and one of the
Independent Non-Executive Directors has appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise. Each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors has
made an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule
313 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all
Independent Non-Executive Directors meet the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

The Company has arranged for directors and officers liability
insurance to indemnity its directors against liabilities arising out
of corporate activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed on an
annual basis.

Chairman and Chief Executive

The Board considered that the duties of the Managing Director, Mr.
Cheung Shu Wan (“MD”) were no different from that required of a
chief executive stipulated under the code provision A.2.1 of the CG
Code. The management would regard that the term MD will have
the same meaning as the chief executive of the Company.

Ms. Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie, the Chairman of the Board, is
an Executive Director who is responsible for the leadership and
effective running of the Board, and ensuring that all significant
and key issues are discussed and where required, resolved by the
Board timely and constructively.
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Corporate Governance Report

Chairman and Chief Executive continueq)

The MD of the Board is delegated with the authority and
responsibility to run the Group’s business and day-to-day
operation, and implement the Group’s strategy with respect to the
achievement of its business objectives with the assistance of the
executive directors and senior management.

Appointment and Re-election of
Directors

Code provision A.4.1 stipulates that Non-Executive Directors should
be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.

Currently, neither the Non-Executive Director nor three Independent
Non-Executive Directors of the Company is appointed for a specific
term. This constitutes a deviation from the CG Code. In accordance
with the provisions of the Bye-laws of the Company, any director
appointed by the Board during the year shall retire and submit
themselves for re-election at the first general meeting immediately
following his/her appointment. Further, at each annual general
meeting, one-third of the directors for the time being, or if their
number is not three or multiple of three, then the number nearest
to but not exceeding one-third, shall retire from office. The directors
to retire by rotation shall be those who have been longest in office
since their last re-election or appointment. As such, the Company
considers that sufficient measures have been taken to ensure that
the Company’s corporate governance practices are similar to those
in the CG Code.

Code provision A.4.2 stipulates that all directors appointed to fill a
casual vacancy should be subject to election by shareholders at
the first general meeting after their appointment, and every director,
including those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
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Corporate Governance Report

Appointment and Re-election of
Directors (continued)

Ms. Choy Wai Sheun, Susan was appointed as Independent Non-
Executive Director on 7 August 2019 and shall only hold office until
the next following annual general meeting of the Company after
her appointment. Due to the oversight of the board of directors of
the Company, a resolution was not proposed at the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 28 August 2019 to re-elect Ms.
Choy as an Independent Non-Executive Director. As a result, Ms.
Choy has ceased to be an Independent Non-Executive Director
upon the conclusion of the AGM. Ms. Choy was re-appointed as
Independent Non-Executive Director on 29 August 2019.

According to the Bye-laws of the Company, the chairman and/or the
managing director is not subject to retirement by rotation or taken
into account in determining the number of directors to retire. This
constitutes a deviation from the CG Code. As continuation is a key
factor to the successful implementation of any long term business
plans, the Board believes that, the present arrangement is most
beneficial to the Company and the shareholders as a whole.

Directors’ Training

All Directors participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure
that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
All directors participate in appropriate continuous professional
development activities by ways of attending training or reading
material relevant to the Company’s business or to the directors’
duties and responsibilities. During the year ended 31 March 2020,
the Company has provided an update on the latest development
and changes of the Listing Rules, applicable laws, rules and
regulations relating to directors’ duties and responsibilities to
each of Ms. Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie, Mr. Cheung Shu Wan,
Ms. Cheung Lai See, Sophie, Dr. Cheung Shu Sang, William, Ms.
Choy Wai Sheun, Susan, Mr. Lai Ah Ming, Leon and Professor Lo
Chung Mau to keep themselves update on the roles, functions and
duties of a listed company director. The Company has received the
records of training from all directors.
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Corporate Governance Report

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established in 1999 and comprises
three Board members, all of whom are independent non-executive
directors. The Audit Committee has adopted the same terms
of reference, which describe the authority and duties of the
Committee, as quoted under code provision C.3.3 of the CG Code.

The Audit Committee will meet at least twice each year. During the
year, the Audit Committee met twice considering the annual results
of the Group for the financial year ended 31 March 2020 and the
interim results of the Group for the 6 months ended 30 September
2019, assessing any changes in accounting policies and practices,
major judgmental areas and compliance with applicable legal and
accounting requirements and standards, discussing with the auditor
of the Company on the risk management and internal control
systems.

Details of Committee members and their attendance records are
listed as below:

Attendance/

Committee member No. of meeting

Ms. Choy Wai Sheun, Susan (Chairman) 2/2
Dr. Chan How Chun, Rita

(resigned on 6/8/2019) 0/2
Mr. Lai Ah Ming, Leon 2/2
Professor Lo Chung Mau 2/2

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established in 2012 with written
terms of reference as stated in Code B.1.2 of the CG Code. The
Remuneration Committee consists of three members, majority
of which are Independent Non-Executive Directors. Mr. Lai Ah
Ming, Leon, being an Independent Non-Executive Director, acts
as the chairman. Dr. Chan How Chun, Rita (resigned on 6 August
2019), an Independent Non-Executive Director, Ms. Choy Wai
Sheun, Susan, and Independent Non-Executive Director and Ms.
Cheung Lai See, Sophie, an Executive Director, are the Committee
Members
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Corporate Governance Report

Remuneration Committee (continueq)

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for ensuring formal
and transparent procedures for developing remuneration policies
and overseeing the remuneration packages of all directors
and senior management. The Remuneration Committee makes
recommendation to the Board for the determination of the
remuneration packages of all executive directors and senior
management, including benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments, including any compensation payable
for loss or termination of their office or appointment, and make
recommendations to the Board for the directors’ fee of non-
executive directors. It takes into account factors such as salaries
paid by comparable companies with similar size and trade,
education background and qualification of each director and senior
management, time commitment and responsibilities of directors and

senior management.

During the vyear, the Remuneration Committee has held one
meeting. Attendance of each individual member was as follows:

Attendance/

Committee member No. of meeting

Mr. Lai Ah Ming, Leon (Chairman) 11
Dr. Chan How Chun, Rita

(resigned on 6/8/2019) 0/1
Ms. Cheung Lai See, Sophie 11
Ms. Choy Wai Sheun, Susan 11

Details on the emolument payable to the directors and the
Company’s share option scheme are disclosed in Notes 9 and 30
to the consolidated financial statements respectively.
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Corporate Governance Report

Nomination of Directors

Code provision A.5.1 stipulates that the Company should establish
a nomination committee. Currently, the Company does not have
a nomination committee. The Board will identify individuals
suitably qualified to become board members when necessary.
The Board will give due consideration to the suitability of a
candidate for directorship after taking into account of his/her
experience, qualification and other relevant factors. All candidates
must also meet the standards as set forth in Rules 3.08 and
3.09 of the Listing Rules. A candidate who is to be appointed
as an independent non-executive director should also meet the

independence criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible to develop and review the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance; review and monitor
the training and continuous professional development of directors
and senior management; review and monitor the Company’s
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements; review and monitor the code of conduct applicable
to employees and directors; and review the Company’s compliance
with the CG Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report.

Company Secretary

Ms. Wong Lai Yung joined the Company since 2006 and was
appointed as the Company Secretary in 2012. Ms. Wong is
responsible to update and provide advice to the Board in relation
to directors’ obligations under the Listing Rules, applicable laws
and regulations, and corporate governance matters. Ms. Wong
has provided her training records to the Company indicating her
compliance with the training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules. Ms. Wong’s biographical details are provided in the
“Directors and Senior Management” section of this Annual Report.

Constitutional Documents

During the year, there is no significant change in the Company’s
constitutional documents.
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Corporate Governance Report

Directors’ Responsibilities for the
Financial Statement

The Board acknowledges that it is their responsibility for (i)
overseeing the preparation of the financial statements of the Group
with a view to ensuring such financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and (i) selecting suitable
accounting policies and applying the selected accounting policies
consistently with the support of reasonable and prudent judgement
and estimates.

A statement by the independent auditor about their reporting
responsibilities is set out on pages 42 to 48 of this Annual Report.

Auditor’s Remuneration

During the year under review, the remuneration payable to the
Company’s independent auditor, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, is set
out as follows:

Services rendered Fees payable

HK$'000

Audit services 2,228
Non-audit services

Review of interim results 323

Taxation services 606

Audit of occupational retirement scheme 24
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Corporate Governance Report

Risk Management and Internal Controls

The Board acknowledges that it is its duty to monitor the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group on an
ongoing basis and review their effectiveness. Such systems are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, conducted an annual
review of both design and implementation effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group, covering
all material controls, including financial, operational and compliance
controls, with a view to ensuring that resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the Group’s
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions are
adequate. In this respect, the Audit Committee communicates any
material issues to the Board.

In light of the size, nature and complexity of the business of the
Group, the Directors are of the view that it would be more cost
effective to appoint external independent professionals to perform
internal audit function for the Group in order to meet its needs.
The Group does not have an internal audit department and will
continue to review the need for an internal audit function.

During the year, the Group appointed KLC Transactions Limited
(“KLC”) as an external independent professional to:

° assist in identifying and assessing the risks of the Group
through a series of interviews; and

° independently perform internal control reviews and assess
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems.
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Corporate Governance Report

Risk Management and Internal Controls
(Continued)

The results of the independent review and assessment were
reported to the Audit Committee and the Board. Moreover,
improvements in internal control and risk management measures
as recommended by KLC to enhance the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group and mitigate risks of the
Group were adopted by the Board. Based on the findings and
recommendations of KLC as well as the comments of the Audit
Committee, the Board considered the internal control and risk
management systems effective and adequate.

The Group has established internal control procedures for the
handling and dissemination of inside information in order to comply
with Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules as well as Part XIVA of the
SFO. The internal control mechanism includes information flow
and reporting processes, confidentiality arrangements, disclosure
procedures, and staff training arrangements, etc.

The Company will continue to engage external independent
professionals to review the Group’s system of internal controls and
risk management and further enhance the Group’s internal control
and risk management systems as appropriate.

Shareholders’ Rights

On the requisition of shareholders of the Company holding not less
than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company, the Board
may convene a special general meeting to address specific issues
of the Company within 21 days from the date of deposit of written
notice to the registered office of the Company. The requisition must
state the purposes of the meeting, and must be signed by the
requisitionist(s).

Shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth of the total voting
rights of all the shareholders or not less than 100 shareholders may
propose any resolution at the annual general meeting and circulate
to other shareholders written statement with respect to the matter
to be dealt with at the annual general meeting.
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Corporate Governance Report

Shareholders’ Rights (continueq)

Shareholders may send their enquiries requiring the Board’s
attention to the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal
office address at Flat B, 23/F., Chaiwan Industrial Centre, 20 Lee
Chung Street, Chai Wan, Hong Kong.

Communication with Shareholders

The Company regards its Annual General Meeting as an
opportunity for direct communication between the Board and its
shareholders. All Directors and external auditor make an effort
to attend the Annual General Meeting to address shareholders’
queries. The Company also responds to requests for information
and queries from the shareholders and investors and welcomes
the views of shareholders on matter affecting the Group and
encourages them to attend shareholders’ meeting to communicate
any concerns they might have with the Board.

Code provision A.6.7 stipulates that, independent non-executive
directors and other non-executive directors shall attend general
meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the views of
shareholders.

An independent non-executive director and an non-executive
director did not attend the Annual General Meeting of the Company
held on 28 August 2019 due to other business engagements and
personal matters.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Deloitte

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF ALLAN INTERNATIONAL
HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Allan
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as “the Group”) set out on pages 49 to 151,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 March 2020, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 March 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with  Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated

financial statements of the current period. These matte

addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial

statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion there
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

HREGTSEE

Valuation of investment properties

REY XG5 1E

We identified the valuation of investment properties as a
key audit matter due to the significant assumptions and
judgements involved in determining their fair value.
BPERREVENGEFERBRNEFSZIE  2AXNE
REERQNFEMGBERSRERBRKMHE -

The Group’s investment properties amounted to
HK$493,545,000 as at 31 March 2020 and a loss
from changes in fair value of investment properties of
HK$52,284,000 was recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
for the year then ended.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RMHOBFNMEHEREASHRETERE

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of investment
properties included:

BB A REMENEF B

° Evaluating the competence,
objectivity of the Surveyors;

. AEBELAERBSMEET B
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capabilities and

CREFI R B

° Obtaining an understanding from the Surveyors
about the valuation technique, the performance of
the market, significant assumptions adopted and
key inputs used in the valuations;
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° Checking the accuracy and integrity of tenancy
information provided by management to the
Surveyors with the underlying source documents;
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Key Audit Matters (continueq)

Key audit matter

BEETEE

As disclosed in Note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements, all of the Group’s investment properties were
stated at fair value based on a valuation performed by
a firm of independent qualified professional surveyors
(“Surveyors”). The fair value of the Group’s investment
properties in Hong Kong was determined by adopting
the direct comparison method. The valuation is sensitive
to the market unit rate of comparable properties and
adjustment factors for size, view and floor level of property
and timing of the comparable transactions. The fair value
of the Group’s investment properties in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) was determined by adopting
the term and reversion analysis of investment approach.
The valuation is sensitive to market rents with key inputs
including rental in reversionary period, vacancy rate and
yield.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RAMNBFNAEERESHETREE
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Assessing the reasonableness of the key inputs
used by the Surveyors in the valuation of
investment properties at year end, including the
rental in reversionary period, vacancy rate, yield,
market rents, market unit rate of individual unit and
adjustment factors for size, view and floor level of
property and timing of comparable transactions
against current market data and entity specific
information on a sample basis; and

AR 2 RDFERT (AR B A (6 Y B R B A BUIR Y
B pREMEHES c EEX - @R - @B
WIS EMERNYENRT  SHEMERE - A
MALZGHEEERZEMMmEREMERARE
BHAERZR  UBEARER &
With the assistance of our internal valuation
specialist, assessing the appropriateness of
valuation methodology and the reasonableness
of the valuation inputs used by the Surveyors in
valuation of properties and leasehold lands which
transferred to investment properties on transfer
date.
RABEEZROHET - sF AR SR
BERZNEEUENAREERREY X 2 BEER
AR &R -



Independent Auditor’s Report

Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those
Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken

on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

° |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,

or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal

control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements
(Continued)

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements
(Continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Sunnie Sy.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

29 June 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or melEmEk
Loss and Other Comprehensive Income Eﬁﬂéﬁﬂ& 3 3%

For the year ended 31 March 2020 HE_ T -_ZEFE=A=+—HItEE
2020 2019
—E-EF ZE-NEF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
b aF FET FiET
Revenue EHERE & 982,835 1,209,200
Cost of sales Fich=—d 9N (839,033) (1,114,118)
Gross profit £ H 143,802 95,082
Other income H A Iy 2% 6 26,177 30,513
Other gains and losses EmAF K EE 7 (7,471) 8,160
Selling and distribution expenses $HE &5 KA (18,384) (23,850)
Administrative expenses TR AR (103,975) (102,571)
Provision for factory relocation expenses WEREEREE 8 - (18,594)
(Loss) gain from changes in fair value of wEYEZ AT EEE
investment properties FEE &£ 8 (B1R) &7 14 (52,284) 46,400
Reversal of impairment loss (impairment loss) B 754 & K (B &5 48
on financial assets, net [ (Ol 18 &5 18) 75 58 373 (294)
Finance costs on bank loan IRITE R 2 KA (1,025) (994)
(Loss) profit before tax bR % AT (& 18D i 7 (12,787) 33,852
Income tax expense FriS i f 2 10 (5,377) (5,733)
(Loss) profit for the year attributable to RNEZ A5 A48 AR
owners of the Company BAZ(EE)ER 11 (18,164) 28,119
Other comprehensive income Hit 2 HE W =
(expense): (%) :
Items that will not be reclassified to BTEEN S EZ
profit or loss: BEmIEE
Gain on revaluation of manufactory plants 4 EMENGEREEE
and right-of-use assets transferred to EEREME
investment properties BB AT 14 114,410 =

Deferred taxation on gain on revaluation of 4 EMENE RAEEE
manufactory plants and right-of-use assets =R &Y E(HAT

transferred to investment properties BRNZELETIA 14 (28,603) =
85,807 —
Items that may be reclassified HEGREEN 7 HEZR
subsequently to profit or loss: mHIIEE -
Exchange differences arising on translation of & /&N EFRFTE £ <
foreign operations JE A ERE (18,427) (8,113)

Net fair value gain on debt instruments at fair & A F{EFA Hib 2 H

value through other comprehensive income W& ZEHTEHA
FERNFEE 40 365

Reclassified to profit or loss upon disposal &% ”“WE‘H\,HJ@

of debt instruments at fair value through FHE = EF LA

other comprehensive income EHEEER 5 (16)
(18,382) (7,764)
Other comprehensive income (expense) 7N B H 2 E U &
for the year () 67,425 (7,764)
Total comprehensive income for the year NN N TR /NG|
attributable to owners of the Company BBEAZEE
2 HW R AR 49,261 20,355
(Loss) earnings per share B (EE) &
Basic AR 13 HK(5.4 cents)i 1l HK8.4 cents &l
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

At 31 March 2020

Non-current assets
Investment properties
Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets
Prepaid lease payments
Club debentures
Deposits paid for acquisition of property,
plant and equipment

Current assets

Inventories

Trade receivables

Other receivables

Mould deposits paid

Prepaid lease payments

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL")

Debt instruments at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”)

Tax recoverable

Short-term deposits

Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities
Trade payables
Other payables and accruals

Mould deposits received

Tax liabilities
Secured bank loan

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

FRBEE

‘AW

M - BE kX
ﬁ@%ﬁ?

18 {4 & 7K T
SHEESH
EfNEEYE -
B R AR &

mEEE

TE

& W & 5 BR 3K

H th & Uk BR 3K
ENEATS

B EERA
EBBREATE
HECZUBEE

BAFEFAEME
S 2 BB TR

FER IR
EEER
RITEEFELRE

mBAR

FE & 5 B
B A R K
e AR A
BEREATE

MIBAE
BHEPRITER

mBEEFE

REERRBAR
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& B IR R &

ﬂ E-_FEF=-A=+—H
2020 2019
—EEF — N
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Viika F#ET FE T
14 493,545 327,400
15 44,037 154,654
16 4,314 —
17 - 19,221
18 11,018 13,176
1,878 1,174
554,792 515,625
19 56,307 76,180
20 133,718 250,535
20 16,788 16,967
7,317 11,179
17 — 608
21 23,278 35,156
22 25,664 31,108
93 810
23 237,423 160,641
28 419,392 397,949
919,980 981,133
24 91,994 140,835
92,086 110,627
20,443 31,148
35,947 36,740
25 5,124 5124
245,594 324,474
674,386 656,659
1,229,178 1,172,284




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

At 31 March 2020

Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities
Secured bank loan

Net assets

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

FRBEE
EEHIAAR
BEMARITER

BEEAE

BAR B
LN
feé 178

The consolidated financial statements on pages 49 to 151 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
29 June 2020 and are signed on its behalf by:

CHEUNG LAI CHUN, MAGGIE

ara B iR R R
W-E-TE=A=1—8

2020 2019

—E_ZHF —NE

Notes HK$°000 HK$000
ok FET FET
26 36,782 7,253
25 26,037 31,161
62,819 38,414

1,166,359 1,133,870

27 33,543 33,543
1,132,816 1,100,327

1,166,359 1,133,870
%W%49§151Ez%?éﬂﬁw& EER=-F

TERNAZ —HLEW‘%i%ATt K X T

?éé CYHTIESFRERRE

CHEUNG LAI SEE, SOPHIE
REH
DIRECTOR
BF
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GERBEER

BE-T-TF=A=t+-RLFE

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 March 2020

Capital  Property Investment
Share Share redemption revaluation revaluation Translation  Retained
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total
BRAEE WEEE REES
BE RHEE e e i ERRE RZEA aE
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000 — HK$000  HK$ tUOQ
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
At 31 March 2018 W_E-\E=f=1—H 33,543 109,884 793 - 631 31,408 961,756 1,138,014
Adjustment HE = = = = (981) = (38) (1,019)
At 1 April 2018 W-E-NEMA-E
(restated) (831) 33543 109,884 793 - (350) 31408 961717 1136995
Profit for the year KEE &R = = = = = = 28,119 28,119
Exchange difference arising on translation BN EKREREE 2
of foreign operations ERES = = = = = (8,113) = (8,113)
Net fair value gain on debt instruments at A FEFALMZE
fair value through other comprehensive Ytz #) (& 75 T A4
income AHERMNEFR = = = = 365 = = 365
Cumulative gain reclassified to profit or ~ HERAFEF AL
loss on disposal of debt instruments at 24z A B T A
fair value through other comprehensive ~ FTE:tBFIEH 5
income R - - - - (16) - - (16)
Other comprehensive income (expense) AN E Hfth 2 E
for the year (Zi) = = — — 349 (8,113) - (7764)
Total comprehensive income (expense)  AFE 2 A ()
for the year e - - - - 349 (813 2819 20,355
Dividends recognised as distribution BREDIEZ RS
(Note 12) (Hii12) = = = = = - (23480)  (23480)
At 1 April 2019 R-_E-NENA—H 33,543 109,884 793 - (1) 23,295 966,356 1,133,870
Loss for the year ~EEFR = = = = = = (18164)  (18,164)
Exchange difference arising on translation ;ENERBEFES 2
of foreign operations EAZB = = = = = (18,427) = (18,427)
Net fair value gain on debt instruments at A FEFALMZE
fair value through other comprehensive W& ) & # T A
income AFHERMFR = = = = 40 = — 40
Cumulative loss reclassified to profit or ~ HEZRAFEFAE
loss on disposal of debt instruments at 2 EYRHHERIE
fair value through other comprehensive T 25t BB EH 218
income HiEn ) = = = = 5 = = 5
Gain on revaluation of manufactory plants % 2 2 B f Pl 4 &
and right-of-use assets transferred to HERRANEMELRN
investment properties (Note 74) SRR (M i) = = - 114410 - - - 114410
Deferred taxation on gain on revaluation £ EHEREAREE
of manufactory plants and right-of- EERENZERMG
use assets transferred to investment B2 BREH IR
properties (Note 14) (W3t14) - - - (8603 — — - (8603
Other comprehensive income (expense) ~ ANEE H{th 2 E I
for the year (%) - = - 8807 45 (18427) = 67,425
Total comprehensive income (expense) ~ ANEE 2 EYE (T H)
for the year ag - - — 85807 45 (18427) (18164 49,261
Dividends recognised as distribution REDR LR E
(Note 12) (His#12) = = = = = = (16,772 (16,772
At 31 March 2020 W-E-ZF=A=1—H 33,543 109,884 793 85,807 44 4,868 931,420 1,166,359
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows #ZLEBEERE R

For the year ended 31 March 2020 HE_ZT-_ZTF=-A=+—HLEFE
2020 2019
—EC_EHF —ET-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES K& EE
(Loss) profit before tax B 7 AT (B 18) & 7 (12,787) 33,852
Adjustments for: T
Release of prepaid lease payments BEBR FEAT M & RIB - 608
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ¥1%¥ - MEEREZITE 15,884 26,762
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREEEZITE 183 —
Loss (gain) from changes in fair value of BREDNEANTFEES
investment properties FrEE 2z BB (&EA) 52,284 (46,400)
Finance costs on bank loan RITERZT B KA 1,025 994
Interest income MEWA (6,591) (3,863)
Cumulative loss (gain) reclassified to profit or RSB (BN EFHHE
loss on: ZE=K:
Disposal of debt instruments at FVTOCI HERAFETAEM
2EHKENEBITA 5 (16)
Net loss (gain) on fair value changes of financial ZEBEZFIZAFEFE 2
assets at FVTPL TREENATFEES
FTEENEE(ET)
-t 1,124 (725)
Amortisation of deferred income IR E WA 2 B - (17,649)
Gain on disposal of property, plant and MEMRFZEAREM
equipment and land use rights located in the (B 2z -
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) WBE - RERLH
ARz &F (379) (5,242)
Loss on disposal of a club debenture HEEMEHLEE 978 =
Write-off of property, plant and equipment MR % - BB R & 929 1,553
(Reversal of impairment loss) impairment loss FEWE 5K 2 O E B
on trade receivables, net B DE) R EE B F5E (873) 294
Provision for factory relocation expenses HERBEREE - 18,594
Operating cash flows before movements in EEBEABER 2 EE
working capital HERE 52,282 8,762
Decrease in inventories FERL 15,296 16,450
Decrease in trade receivables JE W E 5 BR FORL 117,178 36,850
(Increase) decrease in other receivables H th i Uk BR 3k (38 10) Rk > 412) 16,132
Decrease (increase) in mould deposits paid BT B % 2 R 4> GE i) 3,862 (7,064)
Decrease in trade payables FE B 5 B8R 5KOR A (42,244) (43,559)
Decrease in other payables and accruals H i & < BR X & B A
KR A (12,808) (30,038)
(Decrease) increase in mould deposits received 2 UHE B 24 Ot 4) 18 1N (10,705) 5,588
Cash generated from operations REXBREEZR® 122,449 3,121
Hong Kong Profits Tax refund BEMBHERK 349 2,035
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid BENFBECERSH (4,876) (5,758)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) RETEFEEL(FTE)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES ZEEFHE 117,922 (602)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows %z
B2 —-F

For the year ended 31 March 2020

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received
Proceeds from
— disposal of financial assets at FVTPL

— disposal of debt instruments at FVTOCI

Net proceeds on disposal of property,

plant and equipment and land use rights located

in the PRC

Net proceeds on disposal of a club debenture

Purchases of property, plant and equipment
Purchases of investment properties
Purchases of

— financial assets at FVTPL

— debt instruments at FVTOCI

Deposits paid for acquisition of property,
plant and equipment

Withdrawal of short-term deposits

Placement of short-term deposits

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividend paid

Repayment of bank loan
Interest paid

CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

AT END OF THE YEAR, represented by
bank balances and cash

REZH
B U F B
FriS kA A :
— HEFBERIEAF
BitEzemEE
— HERAFEFAEM
FENENEETA
HEURTFENYE  BE
Ko R e £ b R AER
FT1S #8358
HEGRESFAMERE
%A%% %5 K& ﬁ
BEREME
%E:
i&%@ iz a/NS O[]
AECEREBE
—§®$@HAEMQE
WM ER T A
ENBEYE BEK
B -HEa
IREEHER
TR B E1F R

REZBMEREFR
MEED

EfAE

BERITER
2 F 8
MEZHRERS

RERBETESEEMORD)
R

RENzRERAEEE

SNEERZE L F

REZEZRERAESEE
HMERBRTEERRE
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EHERER

FZA=1T—HLFE

2020 2019
—EC_EHF —NF
fﬂc$voo HK$'000
FET FE T
7,206 4,547
11,734 8,848
5,484 5,598
597 18,509
1,180 —
(10,552) (23,562)
(1,425) —
(1,595) (10,274)

- (8,613)
(1,952) (1,174)
373,812 697,050
(454,632) (730,288)
(70,143) (39,359)
(16,772) (23,480)
(5,124) (5,124)
(1,025) (994)
(22,921) (29,598)
24,858 (69,559)
397,949 469,572
(3,415) (2,064)
419,392 397,949




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2020

1.

General

Allan
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with

International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is
limited liability and its shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Its
immediate holding company is Allan Investment Company
Limited, a private company incorporated in Hong Kong; and
its ultimate holding company is Credit Suisse Trust Limited,
who is a trustee of The Cheung Lun Family Trust (“Trust”), the
discretionary beneficiaries of which are, among other family
members, the directors of the Company, Mr. Cheung Shu
Wan, Ms. Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie, Ms. Cheung Lai See,
Sophie and Dr. Cheung Shu Sang, William. The addresses
of the registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the corporate information section
of the annual report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company and
provides corporate management services to its subsidiaries.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries are manufacturing
and trading of household electrical appliances.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (‘HK$”), which is also the functional currency of
the Company.
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REMBHRESHE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ¢
BE-_T-_SE=A=+—RALEE

For the year ended 31 March 2020

Application of New and Amendments
to Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following new and amendments
to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time in the current

FE R FTE] R RIS R BB
TR EZER ([ &7 M8,
HER )

A 2 B B R R A
2 58T R HT &
AREEAAEREE R EAAE S
G 2 AT 5T R T E
755 575 95 4

year:
HKFRS 16 Leases BEEMBHELER HE
F165%
HK(IFRIC) — Int 23 Uncertainty over Income EA(BEBRTBHR ASHERFE
Tax Treatments LtRELZEE) T E 1
— BEE23MR

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation

Amendments to HKFRS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment
or Settlement

Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in
Associates and
Joint Ventures

BAMBHREEL EEAMHENIER
FORZBRIAN  ENFMH

FEEWBREER FHEUEET - HBIR
FIVRZEFTA  HBME

FrEGER REERRIRAE

R ZIERTA EMRHES

Amendments to HKFRSs  Annual Improvements to BENBHmE 20154 220174
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle HERIZEFTA BEAE BT R
HEBMEFE
B

Except as described below, the application of the new
and amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had
no material impact on the Group’s financial positions and
performance for the current and prior years and/or on
the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

HKFRS 16 Leases

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 for the first time in the
current year. HKFRS 16 superseded HKAS 17 Leases
(“HKAS 17”), and the related interpretations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ¢
BE-_T-_TSE=fA=+—RALEE

For the year ended 31 March 2020

Application of New and Amendments
to Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily

2.

FERFE] REIETEEY
B EER(FE MR

28l )

REFEBFHER 2B BMBREER

effective for the current year (Continued) ZHAI R (E)
HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued) EEBNBHEERF165HE (&)
Definition of a lease T E /) E 2=

The Group has elected the practical expedient to apply
HKFRS 16 to contracts that were previously identified as
leases applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC) — Int 4 Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease and not apply this
standard to contracts that were not previously identified as
containing a lease. Therefore, the Group has not reassessed
contracts which already existed prior to the date of initial
application.

BLZAIRIEE B G ERFBITHRRE L
(B HERERBERES) -2 ES4
BEAASHEZANMRESMEE K
SERENTRENEERABTEVER
HEAIFI6FEF R LA HR RIEEEL
BH - Fitt AREAY REFHFGER
REMBZACREENGR -

For contracts entered into or modified on or after 1 April HRR_E—NFNA—HKX 2B
2019, the Group applies the definition of a lease in SEMME R - NEERER SN ®
accordance with the requirements set out in HKFRS 16 in HEREAFIGRNERFEAEENER -
assessing whether a contract contains a lease. HEEREEREHEE -

As a lessee fERAHA

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 retrospectively with the AEBEEPEAEBYBREENS
cumulative effect recognised at the date of initial application, 165 HZ2BFEREXRERRA - B1=

1 April 2019.

As at 1 April 2019, the Group recognised right-of-use assets
at amounts adjusted by any prepaid or accrued lease
payments by applying HKFRS 16.C8(b)(ii) transition. Any
difference at the date of initial application is recognised in
the opening retained profits and comparative information has
not been restated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ¢
BE-_T-_SE=A=+—RALEE

For the year ended 31 March 2020

Application of New and Amendments 2. AT REETEEBH
to Hong Kong Financial Reporting BHREEN(EBHBER
Standards (“ H KFRSS”) (Continued) % ;’E— E\IJ J)(,?E)
New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily RAEAFERFEM 2T BM KRS ZER
effective for the current year (Continued) ZHET RIEFT AR (&)
HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued) EEBBREERFEI65HE (&)
As a lessee (Continued) EZEFAN ()
When applying the modified retrospective approach under ERERIBBRE BB R EENFE165R
HKFRS 16 at transition, the Group applied the following HREBRTEBP L AR  AEEREKE
practical expedients to leases previously classified as SEEEACREENER - §ATAIT
operating leases under HKAS 17, on lease-by-lease basis, to BEHZEBRERNBEBGEBSSE
the extent relevant to the respective lease contracts: ANEIT R EEAKCEHENHEE
i elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease BEIEREVEHREE XER
liabilities for leases with lease term ends within 12 B RE121E A A [ B 58 F #E & E AN
months of the date of initial application; and HEBE &
ii.  excluded initial direct costs from measuring the right- i. MEBRREBXRERBFEEAEE
of-use assets at the date of initial application. EZVBEERAE -
All the operating lease commitments as at 1 April 2019 of RZE—NFHOA—BMAELEHE
HK$2,906,000 were exempted from recognition of right-of- EYE20B6TH T EARRERERESR
use assets as related to the leases with remaining lease term E ARMEMBERSRESEHNEXE
ends within 12 months of the date of initial application or FHERREAANGLERKAREEEEMR
leases of low-value assets. g
The carrying amount of right-of-use assets for own use as HE-_Z-—NWFHNA—BERAERAES
at 1 April 2019 comprises the following: ENEEEERENTAR
Right-of-use
assets
FRAEEE
Notes HK$'000
K aE FAE T
Reclassified from property, plant and equipment Y% BMEMSEBEEHDE @) 120
Reclassified from prepaid lease payments ENHEEREBEETHE b) 19,829
19,949

The following adjustments were made to the amounts
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 1 April 2019. Line items that were not affected by the
changes have not been included.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2020

2. BRI REBITEEY
B EER(FE MR

28l )

= B P A8

2. Application of New and Amendments
to Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

REFEBFHER 2B BMBREER

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily

effective for the current year (Continued) ZHAI R (E)
HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued) EBYUBHREERFEI65HE (&)
As a lessee (Continued) TEZEFAN ()
Carrying
amounts Carrying
previously amounts under
reported at HKFRS 16 at
31 March 2019 Adjustments 1 April 2019
R=ZB-NLF
A—H
ERR=B—hE BREBHERE
=H=+-H % RI 1657
ERZEREE AE ERzERAE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
k23 FHET T FET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Right-of-use assets CREEE = 19,949 19,949
Property, plant and mE - BEKX
equipment F i @) 154,654 (120) 154,534
Prepaid lease payments BAEERE (b) 19,221 (19,221) -
Current asset REBEE
Prepaid lease payments BAEERE (b) 608 (608) -
Notes: Kt -
(@)  In relation to assets previously under finance leases, the Group @ HENBREREEENEE ~5H

recategorised the carrying amounts of the relevant assets
which were still under lease as at 1 April 2019 amounting to
HK$120,000 as right-of-use assets.

(b) Upfront payments for leasehold lands in the People’s Republic (b)
of China (the “PRC”) for own used properties were classified
as prepaid lease payments as at 31 March 2019. Upon
application of HKFRS 16, the current and non-current portion
of prepaid lease payments amounting to HK$608,000 and
HK$19,221,000 respectively, were reclassified to right-of-use

assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2020

2. Application of New and Amendments
to Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily

effective for the current year (Continued)
HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)
As a lessor

In accordance with the transitional provisions in HKFRS

16, the Group is not required to make any adjustment on

transition for leases in which the Group is a lessor but

account for these leases in accordance with HKFRS 16 from

the date of initial application and comparative information has

not been restated.

@)

Before application of HKFRS 16, refundable rental
deposits received were considered as rights and
obligations under leases to which HKAS 17 applied
under trade and other payables. Based on the definition
of lease payments under HKFRS 16, such deposits
are not payments relating to the right-of-use assets
and were adjusted to reflect the discounting effect at
transition. No adjustments were made to refundable
rental deposits received and advance lease payments
as the directors of the Company determined the impact
was immaterial to the consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the current period.

Effective on 1 April 2019, the Group has applied
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(“HKFRS 15”) to allocate consideration in the contract
to each lease and non-lease components. The change
in allocation basis has had no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
current year.

60 Allan International Holdings Limited T2 fa BB & B AR L 7

B

2.

REMBHRESHE

2T FTE-RA=+—HItFE

FERFEIREETERE
B EER(FEMBER

28l )

REAFEBFHERZEBHBEREER
ZHATRBIARE)
BEBUBHREERF165HE ()
1ER M A

AR & B 15 i R 1657 B8 IR IR
X AEEBERAEESHEANE
EMEEEELEMAE  EEEXRE
RBERBEREW B REENFI65HA
fRHEBERRAEET -

@ HEEBBABUBREERFI65
ZH BB RERNERS
REBGFTEFITHRNES R E
A R E R ERNEE
MENMER - REBEFEVBR
SEAFRENEENKANESE
HEZETEREREEERAH
B3R I TT I B A R B IR
By B9 I IR FE - R TR AR MR
BEARERERS  SEYKR
ETHE RAARRESHRTEY
SEAYEAMBEHRRREEAXN

B/ 88
e

by BZTE—AFMUA—HR x&EME
B FE A BB B 5 S 2 Bl 51558
HESAHNBA(EAMBRE
ERIE155% D BERFHEESER
LEBEBEEMEREAK LS
PREENBLCHAEELAFE
RAEMBHRRAIBEAZE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2020

2. Application of New and Amendments
to Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet

effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not

yet effective:

HKFRS 17

Amendment to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 1

and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendments to HKFRS 9,

HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRSs

Insurance Contracts!

Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions®
Definition of a Business?

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework®

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Definition of Material*

Property, Plant and Equipment
— Proceeds before Intended
Use®

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract®

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform*

Annual improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020°
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2020

Application of New and Amendments
to Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet

effective (Continued)

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021.

2 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for
which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the
first annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to
be determined.

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2020.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022.

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June
2020.

In addition to the above new and amendments to HKFRSs,
a revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
was issued in 2018. Its consequential amendments, the
Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework
in HKFRS Standards, will be effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

Except for the amendments to HKFRS and the revised
Conceptual Framework mentioned below, the directors of the
Company anticipate that the application of all other new and
amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition of
Material

The amendments provide refinements to the definition of
material by including additional guidance and explanations in
making materiality judgments. In particular, the amendments:

° include the concept of “obscuring” material information
in which the effect is similar to omitting or misstating
the information;

° replace threshold for materiality influencing users from
“could influence” to “could reasonably be expected to
influence”; and

62 Allan International Holdings Limited SEfa Bl £ E AR A 7

REMBHRESHE

BE_FT_FTF=-A=1T—HBHLHFE

FERMET REIETEEY
B EER(FEMBER

HEA o)

EEMGEEARERNEBHEHREER

Z%T&&Vjﬁﬁ@
R-ZT-——F—A B EERENT
FEHARE A A o

2 REBEESHA-_T_ZTF—HF—H=%
ZERBEOEEFERVK 2B
BEHREERBEMR -

8 RETHABEEARARNFEEHRBE
2 e

4 R-ZE-_TF—A— B EBHABAN
FEHAR AR -

3 RZTE_—F—F—HBHEEZBABHN
FE I

8 R-ZE-_TFNA—HBHEBRFAAD
FEHAR AR o

B Ll ¥ 5T R AR B 5T B 78 B 75 5 22 Rl
S B N\F IR BEMEERT 2]
ERSAER o HBE 2 MRS R] A48 2
BB B E BRI RERZ BT
R-ZFE_TF-—A-—BXZERFABZIF
EHEIEAER -

BT AT 2 A 3T 5 78 0 75 R 25 2
RS ETBASERI  ARRNESEY
1 FB P B4t 7T AR 3T B 8 75
ERANTR KRR HHAHHER
EREAYE -

BEBETEREIRREECTEANE
BHEZIETEEANEZ
ZEETEBEALELERNHE RO
BOMESI R HWEANERETE
Rl LERBHIER:

(BEIEXEHOHS - H
ERARMEBBRLUBER:

°
peael

F“m ol

s MPEEREZTEUMEENIA
EERYFEIRKIAZE] R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %R &S BB RS E K ==

I
For the year ended 31 March 2020 HE_ZT-_ZTF=-A=+—HLEFE

to Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet

effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition of

Material (Continued)

° include the use of the phrase “primary users” rather
than simply referring to “users” which was considered
too broad when deciding what information to disclose
in the financial statements.

The amendments also align the definition across all HKFRSs
and will be mandatorily effective for the Group’s annual
period beginning on 1 April 2021. The application of the
amendments is not expected to have significant impact on
the financial position and performance of the Group but may
affect the presentation and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements.

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018 (the
“New Framework”) and the Amendments to References
to the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards

The New Framework:

° reintroduces the terms stewardship and prudence;

° introduces a new asset definition that focuses on rights
and a new liability definition that is likely to be broader
than the definition it replaces, but does not change the
distinction between a liability and an equity instrument;

° discusses historical cost and current value measures,
and provides additional guidance on how to select a
measurement basis for a particular asset or liability;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2020

Application of New and Amendments
to Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet

effective (Continued)

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018 (the

“New Framework”) and the Amendments to References

to the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards

(Continued)

° states that the primary measure of financial
performance is profit or loss, and that only in
exceptional circumstances other comprehensive
income will be used and only for income or expenses
that arise from a change in the current value of an asset
or liability; and

o discusses uncertainty, derecognition, unit of account,
the reporting entity and combined financial statements.

Consequential amendments have been made so that
references in certain HKFRSs have been updated to the New
Framework, whilst some HKFRSs are still referred to the
previous versions of the framework. These amendments are
effective for the Group’s annual period beginning on or after
1 April 2020. Other than specific standards which still refer
to the previous versions of the framework, the Group will rely
on the New Framework on its effective date in determining
the accounting policies especially for transactions, events
or conditions that are not otherwise dealt with under the
accounting standards.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2020

Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for investment properties
and certain financial instruments that are measured at fair
values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in
the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment,
leasing transactions that are accounted for in accordance
with HKFRS 16 (since 1 April 2019) or HKAS 17 (before
application of HKFRS 16), and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as
net realisable value in HKAS 2 /nventories or value in use in
HKAS 36 /mpairment of Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or
by selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2020

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2020

3. FEFTTHERw

3. Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

° the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Group performs;

° the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

° the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %’F 4R 7} BaEEMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 HE_Z_ZTF=-"A=T—HIEFE

3. FEFTHER

3. Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

Revenue from sales of household electrical appliance are
recognised at a point in time, when control of the good is
transferred to the customer, i.e. when goods are delivered to the
customer’s designated location. The normal credit term is 30
to 90 days upon delivery. Customers does not have the option
to purchase a warranty separately and warranty is provided
to customers for the assuring that the product complies with
agreed-upon specifications (i.e. assurance-type warranties). The
Group accounts for such warranty in accordance with HKAS
37 Provision, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets.

Leases

Definition of a lease (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in Note 2)

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from
business combinations on or after the date of initial
application, the Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS
16 at inception, modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed unless
the terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently
changed.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to leases of staff quarter and office that have a lease term
of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do
not contain a purchase option. It also applies the recognition
exemption for lease of low-value assets. Lease payments
on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are
recognised as expense on a straight-line basis or another
systematic basis over the lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2020

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in Note 2)
Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

° any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date; and

° any initial direct costs incurred by the Group.

Except for those that are classified as investment properties
and measured under fair value model, right-of-use assets are
measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the
definition of investment properties as a separate line item on
the consolidated statement of financial position. Right-of-use
assets that meet the definition of investment property are
presented within “investment properties”.

The Group as lessee (prior to 1 April 2019)

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of
the Group at their fair value at the inception of the lease or,
if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments.
The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the
consolidated statement of financial position as a finance lease
obligation.

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring
land held under operating leases, are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

When a sale and leaseback transaction results in an operating
lease, and the sale price is above fair value, the excess over
fair value shall be deferred and amortised over the period for
which the asset is expected to be used.
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3. FEFTTHERw

3. Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as lessor

Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as
finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee, the contract
is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified
as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of
the leased asset, and such costs are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term except
for investment properties measured under fair value model.

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract
When a contract includes both leases and non-lease
components, the Group applies HKFRS 15 to allocate
consideration in a contract to lease and non-lease
components. Non-lease components are separated from
lease component on the basis of their relative stand-alone
selling prices.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to
fair value at initial recognition are considered as additional
lease payments from lessees.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2020

3.

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Income and expenses items
are translated at the average exchange rates for the period,
unless exchange rate fluctuate significantly during that period,
in which case the exchange rates at the date of transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of translation reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of
the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint
arrangement or an associate that includes a foreign operation
of which the retained interest becomes a financial asset), all
of the exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect
of that operation attributable to the owners of the Company
are reclassified to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2020

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding after the
related asset is ready for its intended use or sale is included
in the general borrowing pool for calculation of capitalisation
rate on general borrowings. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants
are intended to compensate.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of
giving immediate financial support to the Group with no future
related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they become receivable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2020

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Retirement benefit costs and termination benefits
Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes,
the Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance (“ORSO
Scheme”) and a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
established under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance (“MPF Scheme”) in December 2000, all being
defined contribution schemes, are recognised as an expense
when employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the earlier
of when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
the termination benefit and when it recognises any related
restricting cost.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit

in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave)
after deducting any amount already paid.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit/loss before tax because
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 HE_Z_ZTF=-"A=T—HIEFE

3. FEFTTHERw

3. Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rate (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %’F 4R 7} BaEEMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 HE_Z-_ZTF=-"A=+T—HIEFE

3. FEFTHER

3. Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts
of such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment property is
depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time,
rather than through sale.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation
authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that
are held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services, or for administrative purposes (other than properties
under construction as described below) are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost, less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Annual Report 2019/2020 —E—hEZE=

BiE (&)
EXEHRBERBEREE A ERRZAE
RPN BEHAERRUOREERER
ERBBEZREABZTAFERBTZH
&R

RABERAAFERAGFEZREDE
ZEEREAGRHEEREAEEMS -
DRERZEEBHERLERYE 2K
H{E  BRIERREKD - HREWEA
FERENRARN —BRERAEBZME
P B & 2 KA % F 25 (T IF 45 18
HE)ZEBEAMRMFTAE - BIRE LR

& o

EAAAARITENF SRR
EENMBEREERE  WHRERF—
MGEEYR - BRHEBRBWR G
HBREE  AREHRAEEENRAENE
MR -

REENBELERBRBERER  HERE
MEAREMEERENE RN R E
BABRIN BB T - RFE RIELE
MEANEDHRNEMEEKREHERR
R FER ©

M- BMERRKRE

ME BEMRBRERFELENM
EEmARB < ARIETTHRRAE 2B
BE(INXARERZ TIERRIN I A
BRARRBETERZERERER
B) REAaUBRRARABT -

EFEFH 75



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2020

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Costs include any costs
directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management and, for qualifying assets,
borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences when the assets
are ready for their intended use.

Ownership interests in leasehold land and building
When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can
be made reliably, interest in leasehold land is presented
as “right-of-use assets” (upon application of HKFRS 16) or
“prepaid lease payments” (before application of HKFRS 16)
in the consolidated statement of financial position except for
those that are classified and accounted for as investment
properties under the fair value model. When the consideration
cannot be allocated reliably between non-lease building
element and undivided interest in the underlying leasehold
land, the entire properties are classified as property, plant
and equipment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %’F 4R 7} BaEEMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 HE_Z-_ZTF=-"A=+T—HIEFE

3. FEFTHER

3. Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Transfer from owner-occupied property to investment
property carried at fair value

If a property becomes an investment property because its
use has changed as evidenced by end of owner-occupation,
any difference between the carrying amount and the fair
value of that item (including the relevant leasehold land under
HKFRS 16 or prepaid lease payments under HKAS 17) at
the date of transfer is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in property revaluation reserve. On
the subsequent sale or retirement of the property, the relevant
revaluation reserve will be transferred directly to retained
profits.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets other than properties under construction less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2020

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/
or for capital appreciation.

Effective 1 April 2019, investment properties also include
leased properties which are being recognised as right-of-use
assets upon application of HKFRS 16.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at their fair
values, adjusted to exclude any prepaid or accrued operating
lease income.

Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit or loss for the
period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use or no future economic benefits are expected from
its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in profit or loss in the period in which the property
is derecognised.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at cost less accumulated impairment
losses.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when
no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an
intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are
recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

78 Allan International Holdings Limited SEfa Bl £ E AR A 7

REMBHRESHE

BE-T-TF=A=t+-RLFE

FESTHERe

REWE
HEREVMERRBRSR REFH
g -

B-Z-NFOA—HE REVET
BEZEHEVERERATEVEHRE
ERFICREERRERREE -

REMENTEEAA(BREIFNEERRE
ERXFTE - T HERE  REWE
REMOAFENE  WETHAENE
BREMBAENREFNEEHERA -

REMEATEEDELE ZBTHEE
SPAEEMBCEARR °

RIEEMFE B ESKAE L ER LA
TERHEZYETEFRRLE W =
B REMESRILHER - KILERY
EMEEAEMKREHBRIZHEMNS
RBEFRAZEERAEZZRFE
ROER IR ZHPHEFTAERE °

BYWEEREERYMRZETLEER
AR E R R R E BRI

BYEERHEXERMEAALER
BEAREEMNDEREER - RRLE
BREVEEMEEZBNLEE - T
BHEMBHRIFR BZAEERE
BzEZEZRAE8 UNBEEEETH
RENBE AR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2020

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-of-
use assets and intangible assets other than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of
the impairment loss (if any). Intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives are tested for impairment at least annually, and
whenever there is an indication that they may be impaired.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, and intangible assets are estimated
individually. When it
recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates the

is not possible to estimate the

recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporate
assets are allocated to the relevant cash-generating unit
when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
established, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash generating units for which a reasonable
and consistent allocation basis can be established. The
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit or group of cash-generating units to which the corporate
asset belongs, and is compared with the carrying amount of
the relevant cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating
units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset (or cash-generating unit) for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2020

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-of-
use assets and intangible assets other than goodwill
(Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets which cannot be allocated
on a reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-generating
unit, the Group compares the carrying amount of a group
of cash-generating units, including the carrying amounts of
the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated
to that group of cash-generating units, with the recoverable
amount of the group of cash-generating units. In allocating
the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the group
of cash-generating units. The carrying amount of an asset is
not reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and
zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise
have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the
other assets of the unit or the group of cash-generating units.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit or a
group of cash-generating units) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit or the
group of cash-generating units) in prior years. A reversal of
an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2020

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are calculated using the first-
in, first-out method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs
of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (where the effect of the time value

of money is material).

A restructuring provision is recognised when the Group has
developed a detailed formal plan for the restructuring and
has raised a valid expectation in those affected that it will
carry out the restructuring by starting to implement the plan
or announcing its main features to those affected by it. The
measurement of a restructuring provision includes only the
direct expenditures arising from the restructuring, which are
those amounts that are both necessarily entailed by the
restructuring and not associated with the ongoing activities
of the entity.
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3. FEFTTHERw

3. Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from
contracts with customers which are initially measured in
accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2020

3. FEFTHER

3. Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both selling and
collecting contractual cash flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL, except that at the date of initial application of HKFRS
9/initial recognition of a financial asset the Group may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value
of an equity investment in other comprehensive income if that
equity investment is neither held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 Business Combinations
applies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2020

3. Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

A financial asset is held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

° on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as
a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost
or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.

(i) Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently
at amortised cost and debt instruments subsequently
measured at FVTOCI. Interest income is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset, except for financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-impaired (see
below). For financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised
cost of the financial asset from the next reporting
period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial asset is no
longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination that the
asset is no longer credit-impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2020

3. Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial

assets (Continued)

(i

(i)

Debt instruments classified as at FVTOCI

Subsequent changes in the carrying amounts for
debt instruments classified as at FVTOCI as a result
of interest income calculated using the effective
interest method, and foreign exchange gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss. All other
changes in the carrying amount of these debt
instruments are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of
investment revaluation reserve. Impairment allowances
are recognised in profit or loss with corresponding
adjustment to other comprehensive income without
reducing the carrying amounts of these debt
When these debt

derecognised, the cumulative gains or losses previously

instruments. instruments are

recognised in other comprehensive income are

reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated
as FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period, with any fair value
gains or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss includes any
dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and
is included in the “other gains and losses” line item.
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3. FEFTTHERw

3. Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss (“ECL”) model on financial assets (including trade
receivables, other receivables, debt instruments at FVTOCI,
short-term deposits, and bank balances) which are subject to
impairment under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated
at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-months ECL (“12m ECL”)
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to
result from default events that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date. Assessment are done based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions at the
reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL on trade receivables are assessed
individually for debtors.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2020

3. Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk
In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
date of initial recognition. In making this assessment,
the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

° significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase
in the credit spread, the credit default swap prices
for the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet
its debt obligations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2020

3. Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(0

Significant increase in credit risks (Continued)
Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the credit
risk on a debt instrument has not increased significantly
since initial recognition if the debt instrument is determined
to have low credit risk at the reporting date. A debt
instrument is determined to have low credit risk if i) it
has a low risk of default, ii) the borrower has a strong
capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in
the near term and iii) adverse changes in economic and
business conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its
contractual cash flow obligations. The Group considers
a debt instrument to have low credit risk when it has an
internal or external credit rating of “investment grade” as
per globally understood definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2020

3. Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i) Definition of default
For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when information
developed internally or obtained from external sources
indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking into account
any collaterals held by the Group).

The Group considers that default has occurred when
the instrument is more than 90 days past due unless
the Group has reasonable and supportable information
to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate.

(i)  Credit-impaired financial assets
A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes observable data about the following events:

(@  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2020

3. Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iv)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, for example, when the counterparty
has been placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of trade
receivables, when the amounts are over one years past
due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets written
off may still be subject to enforcement activities under
the Group’s recovery procedures, taking into account
legal advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes
a derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are
recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of default occurring
as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is estimated as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to
the Group in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the effective interest rate determined at
initial recognition.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit impaired, in which case interest
income is calculated based on amortised cost of the
financial asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %’F 4R 7} BaEEMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 HE_Z-_ZTF=-"A=+T—HIEFE

3. FEFTHER

3. Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(vy  Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continueq)
Except for investments in debt instruments that
are measured at FVTOCI, the Group recognises an
impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial
instruments by adjusting their carrying amount, with the
exception of trade receivables where the corresponding
adjustment is recognised through a loss allowance
account. For investments in debt instruments that are
measured at FVTOCI, the loss allowance is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
the investment revaluation reserve without reducing
the carrying amounts of these debt instruments. Such
amounts represents the changes in the investment
revaluation reserves in relation to accumulated loss
allowance.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest
in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may
have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and
also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %’F 4R 7} BaEEMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 HE_Z_ZTF=-"A=T—HIEFE

3. FEFTTHERw

3. Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

On derecognition of an investment in a debt instrument
classified as at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve is
reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of
the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including secured bank loan, trade
payables and other payables are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognise financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2020

Critical Accounting Judgements
and Key Sources of Estimation
Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in Note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
underlying assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Critical judgement in applying accounting policies

The following is the critical judgement, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax arising from
investment properties that are measured using the fair value
model, the directors of the Company have reviewed the
Group’s investment property portfolios in Hong Kong and the
PRC, and concluded that the Group’s investment properties
in Hong Kong are not held under a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment properties over time.
Therefore, in measuring the Group’s deferred taxation on
investment properties in Hong Kong, the directors of the
Company have determined that the presumption that the
carrying amounts of investment properties measured using
the fair value model are recovered entirely through sale is not
rebutted. The Group has not recognised any deferred taxes
on changes in fair value of investment properties in Hong
Kong as the Group is not subject to any income taxes on the
fair value changes of the investment properties on disposal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2020

Critical Accounting Judgements
and Key Sources of Estimation
Uncertainty (Continued)

Critical judgement in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

Deferred taxation on investment properties (Continued)
The directors of the Company concluded that the Group’s
investment properties in the PRC are held under a business
model whose objective is to earn rental which consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodies in the
investment properties over time. Therefore, in measuring the
Group’s deferred taxation on investment properties in the
PRC, the directors of the Company have determined that
the presumption that the carrying amounts of investment
properties measured using the fair value model are recovered
entirely through sale is rebutted. The Group has recognised
deferred taxes on changes in fair value of investment
properties in the PRC as the Group is subject to income
tax rate of 256% on the fair value changes of the investment
properties.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Valuation of investment properties

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s investment
properties are stated at fair value of HK$493,545,000 (2019:
HK$327,400,000) based on the valuation performed by a firm
of independent qualified professional surveyors.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2020

Critical Accounting Judgements
and Key Sources of Estimation
Uncertainty (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Valuation of investment properties (Continued)

In determining the fair value of investment properties located
in Hong Kong, surveyors have used the direct comparison
method which involves estimation of market unit rate of
comparable properties and adjustment factors for size, view
and floor level of properties and timing of the comparable
transactions. Fair value of investment properties located in the
PRC was determined based on term and reversion analysis
of investment method by capitalising rental income on a
fully leased basis having regard to the current passing rental
income from existing tenancy and the potential reversionary
rental income at market level, with key inputs including rental
in reversionary period, vacancy rate and yield.

In relying on the valuation reports, the directors of the
Company have exercised their judgement and are satisfied
that the method of valuations are reflective of the current
market conditions. Note 14 provides detailed information
about the valuation techniques, inputs and key assumptions
used in the determination of the fair value of investment
properties.

Revenue and Segment Information

The principal activities of the Group are manufacturing and
trading of household electrical appliance. Revenue of the
Group is sales of household electrical appliance.

As at 31 March 2020, all received purchase orders are
expected to be completed within 1 year.

Information reported to the Company’s executive directors
(the chief operating decision maker) for the purposes of
resource allocation and assessment of segment performance
focuses on geographical regions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2020

5.

(Continued)

Revenue and Segment Information

The Group is currently organised into four operating divisions

— Europe sales, Asia sales, America sales and other regions

sales. The information reported to the Group’s chief operating

decision maker for the purposes of resource allocation and

assessment of performance is based on these operating

divisions.

Segment Revenues and Results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenues and

results for each of the reportable and operating segments.

Year ended 31 March 2020

Segment revenue (Note a)

Segment profit

Other gains and losses
(except net foreign exchange loss)

Depreciation (except moulds and right-
of-use assets)

Loss from changes in fair value of
investment properties

Finance costs on bank loan

Reversal of impairment loss on financial
assets, net

Unallocated income and expenses, net
(Note b)

Loss before tax
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5. EX¥HERkoBER
AEEEE D K4EEE R H I &K
W T ENREA I EEE o EF
BREE2ERAEBETELEERREALTN
EHhEZEEBD I 2ERD B Mt %Z
DEPFRIE -
DEEEBEREE
ATTREAEEZ 2| KLEE DS
HWRER L EEBRFEEEL 29
BE _E_FF=F=1+—HIFE
Other
Europe Asia  America regions  Consolidated
9 M EN HtwE oE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FEL FET FET FET
(Note a)
(Hita)
DERE K (ff ita) 461,584 169,828 309,867 41,556 982,835
2 2% A 26,919 9,904 18,072 2,424 57,319
HwRH kBB
(H1FE 518 5 2B RR O (2,674)
NEMARE AR
BERIN (14,353)
REMEZ RN TEZEMH
EENER (52,284)
BOTERUEE (1,025)
CREEREEE
dEpEE 373
AOBEBARRAL FE
(B #b) (143)
R RIEE (12,787)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2020

5. Revenue and Segment Information
(Continued)

Segment Revenues and Results (Continued)
Year ended 31 March 2019

REMBHRESHE
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5. XN HER @

THMEXBERXEE)
BE_FE—NF=ZA=+—HIFE

Other
Europe Asia America regions Consolidated
B M EM Hoh i@ Ee)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FHET FET FHET FHET FET
(Note a)
(Hi#ta)
Segment revenue (Note g) DBEER N Ha) 557,386 277,752 328,282 45780 1,209,200
Segment profit 7 2 Fl 5,905 2,942 3,478 485 12,810
Other gains and losses Hitn B F ] B 18 (HME
(except net foreign exchange gain) B & FEEER M) 4,415
Depreciation (except moulds) HrERERIMN (24,367)
Gain from changes in fair value of ~ REHNEZRATELZE
investment properties FT EE A B 2 46,400
Finance costs on bank loan BIIERHEER (994)
Provision for factory relocation HMERBEREE
expenses (18,594)
Impairment loss on financial assets, % &4 ER{EEBEE
net e (294)
Unallocated income and expenses, &2 Rt A 5 52 B 58
net (Note b) (Hiitb) 14,476
Profit before tax B 4 AT A 33,852
Note a: The allocation of segment revenue is determined based on Hieta: DIBEEEHHELEREROM
destinations of shipment of products. iE B /M R SE o
Note b: Unallocated income and expenses mainly represented Kiith: RAOBEBRARAT EERE KL

certain other income, central administration costs and
directors’ salaries.

HEMWA - RRITHE AN EES
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2020

5.

Revenue and Segment Information
(Continued)

Segment Revenues and Results (Continued)

The accounting policies of the reportable and operating
segments are the same as the Group’s accounting policies
described in Note 3. Segment profit represents the profit
earned by each segment without allocation of other income,
central administration cost and directors’ salaries, other
gains and losses (except net foreign exchange loss/gain),
depreciation (except moulds and right-of-use assets), (loss)
gain from changes in fair value of investment properties,
finance costs on bank loan, provision for factory relocation
expenses and reversal of impairment loss (impairment loss)
of financial assets, net. This is the measure reported to the
Group’s chief operating decision maker for the purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment. Revenue
reported above represents revenue generated from external
customers. There were no inter-segment sales in both years.

Segment Assets and Liabilities
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and

liabilities by reportable and operating segment:

Segment Assets

Europe M

Asia M
America M

Other regions Hip &
Segment assets NHEE
Unallocated assets AAEEE

Financial assets as FVTPL
Debt instruments at FVTOCI

Short-term deposits REER
Bank balances and cash BOEERAS
Investment properties REME

Plant, equipment and machinery BB RERER

(except moulds)

Club debentures SHESR
Other receivables e U BR 5%
Tax recoverable fEETIR

o RDEBEMWZ)

Other unallocated assets (Note)

REE

St

Consolidated assets 4
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2020 2019

—g-gr —2-n%

HK$°000 HK$000

FET FAT

97,480 160,053

36,732 80,757

56,327 85,814

9,309 13,470

199,848 340,094

23,278 35,156

25,664 31,108

237,423 160,641

419,392 397,949

493,545 327,400

41,531 162,454

11,018 13,176

16,788 16,967

93 810

6,192 21,003

1,474,772 1,496,758




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2020
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5. Revenue and Segment Information 5.
(Continued)
Segment Assets and Liabilities (Continued) PHEERBE(E)
Segment Assets (Continued) 7 EEE(E)
Note: Other unallocated assets comprised right-of-use assets i &t -

(2019: prepaid lease payments)

and deposits paid for

acquisition of property, plant and equipment.

EEHERDHBER @

Htt ROEEERRERAEEE
(2019 : ANEERB) RENEE
ME BEMRBZE -

Segment Liabilities S EHEE
2020 2019
—EEF —NE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAE T
Europe &M 8,107 12,517
Asia DL 2,626 5,348
America =M 9,200 12,450
Other regions H A 30 [= 510 833
Segment liabilities (Note) D EBE M EE) 20,443 31,148
Unallocated liabilities Ao BE
Trade payables JERT B 5 RN 91,994 140,835
Other payables and accruals HEARR R EMARA 92,086 110,627
Secured bank loan BEMBEITER 31,161 36,285
Tax liabilities HIEAE 35,947 36,740
Deferred tax liabilities FEERIBEE 36,782 7,253
Consolidated liabilities == 308,413 362,888
Note: Segment liabilities represented mould deposits received by Ha: HEEEES—HHEWERTTS
each segment.
Annual Report 2019/2020 —E—hFEE=
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %’F 4R 7} BaEEMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 HE_Z_ZTF=-"A=T—HIEFE
5. Revenue and Segment Information 5. EXHBR I HFER @
(Continued)
Information about Major Customers FEEFNEHR
Revenue from customers of the corresponding years A& B R B R AR S FE RE10% 3k A |
contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the Group are MEPEEBENT:
as follows:
2020 2019
—E-EF —ZT-hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET

Customer A (Europe, Asia, America and ZEA @M - M~ =M

Other regions) o E At b [ ) 313,993 398,621
Customer B (Europe, Asia, America and ZEB(BOM -~ 22N - =M
Other regions) R H Ath 3 [ ) 208,800 228,438
Customer C (Europe, Asia, America and ZEECBUM -~ ZM - =M
Other regions) B E At b 5 ) 141,171 304,801
Geographical Information it & & #
The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong and the AEBZEBEMBRBEBRTFEARSE
PRC. MB(TRE]) -
Information about the Group’s non-current assets is ERREEZERBEEREREEMN
presented based on the geographical location of the assets. fEHEMET] -
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Hong Kong B 293,199 350,390
The PRC B 261,593 165,235
554,792 515,625
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2020

5.

Revenue and Segment Information
(Continued)

Other Segment Information
Year ended 31 March 2020

Europe Asia
BOM M
HK$'000  HKS$'000
FEx FET

Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss
or segment assets:

Additions to non-current assets ERBEEEM 683 208
Depreciation of property, plant nE - BEREZER

and equipment and right-of-use FREEENE

assets 705 236

REMBHRESHE

BE_FT_FTF=-_A=1T—HBHLHFE

5. XN HER @

Hvn HBER
BE-_F-_FF=-H=1—-HIFE

Other Total

America regions  segment Unallocated Consolidated
EHN EeoE 2H4F ROE G4&
HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
HHBEBRENFEDEENHEIEK

D EBEEE
910 35 1,836 11,315 13,151
724 49 1,714 14,353 16,067

Amounts regularly provided to the chief operating decision
maker but not included in the measure of segment profit or

B EERRBETBELERREAL
EBEAEERETEN MaNKEEX D |

loss or segment assets: BE:
Interest income on bank deposits 17775 Z 7 B YA - - - - - 5,744 5,744
Interest income on debt instruments &7 T & 2 F| 8K A - - - - - 847 847
Rental income EON - - - - - 8,811 8,811
Year ended 31 March 2019 BE-—F-NF=A=1+—HILFE
Other Total
Europe Asia America regions segment  Unallocated Consolidated
UM ) I Hfute S HAE RAE 28
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAET FET FAET FAET FET FAET
Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss or HEBEERERF 2D S ENKEER
segment assets: D EBEE
Additions to non-current assets FnBEEEM 486 179 658 26 1,349 22,694 24,043
Depreciation of property, plant and %1% - BERRENE
equipment 940 390 1,005 60 2,395 24,367 26,762

Amounts regularly provided to the chief operating decision
maker but not included in the measure of segment profit or

BB ERRBEEERZEERRAL
BN E0 #hE N R EH D &

loss or segment assets: BE:

Interest income on bank deposits BOIFERLFBHRA = = = = = 2,968 2,968

Interest income on debt instruments  EH LA ZF 8K A = = = = = 895 895

Rental income HelA = = = = = 6,642 6,642
Annual Report 2019/2020 —E—hEZ_S_ZFFER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2020

6. Other Income

Rental income HE KA

Interest income A 2B A
Amortisation of deferred income iR FE W A 2 B 5
Building management fee income BFERBKA
Scrap sales & B
Government grants (Note) B E B & (4 22)
Others HAth

Note: Government grants were received by certain subsidiaries
of the Company in the PRC as compensation for expenses
already incurred. There are no unfulfilled conditions or
contingencies in relation to the grants.

7. Other Gains and Losses

REMBHRESHE

BE-T-TF=A=t+-RLFE

6. Hilg A
2020 2019
—E-EHF —ET—NF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FE T
8,811 6,642
6,591 3,863
- 17,649
3,294 940
508 721
6,893 =
80 698
26,177 30,513

Hret: ARBEFENFKLFRAFSKE
BT - (EREZLEERMAEE -
B & P17 AR B IR R KA

FH o

7. HtBRNREIE

2020 2019
—E-FF —ZT—hF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Net foreign exchange (loss) gain SVE (B 18) B 558 (4,797) 3,745
Gain on disposal of property, HEME BERZERK
plant and equipment and land use rights iz 7 AR B #9 £ b {55 F 4
located in the PRC Z B F| 379 5,242
Loss on disposal of a club debenture HESEGESZER (978) =
Write-off of property, plant and equipment #1% - B &= & & f&5 M & (929) (1,553)
Cumulative (loss) gain reclassified from HEZRAFEFAEME
other comprehensive income to Hi s 2 BB THE 2 25
profit or loss on disposal of debt (B8 BFBEMEEK
instruments at FVTOCI mEEHOBEERA (5) 16
Net (loss) gain on fair value changes of BBBEREATFEFEZ
financial assets at FVTPL BEEAFEEM
EEZ(BR)BNFE (1,124) 725
Others Hity (17) (15)
(7,471) 8,160
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

I

For the year ended 31 March 2020 HE_ZT-_ZTF=-A=+—HLEFE

8. Provision for Factory Relocation 8. BWMEMEEARHE
Expenses
During the year ended 31 March 2019, in order to enhance HE_Z-NEF=A=1T—HILFE &
the efficiency of cost control, and earn rental income, the REKANESREREERSWA - K
directors of the Company decided to relocate the operation NAEEARAERERNEEER —FRE
of one of the manufactory plants of the Group. The factory R B B o 5% AR TR A 7 DA R ERAR
buildings of this production plant would be leased out to earn o RZE-—NAF=A=+—H 1,589
rentals. As at 31 March 2019, provision of RMB15,892,000 EoFTm A RIE 2 4% (491,8598 4T %
(equivalent to HK$18,594,000), which is mainly severance L) FERZ IS TN ERE -
payment for labours in this plant, was made. The plant and 8% B2 0 5% 45 15 85 7% B HL & R [ ok B o
equipment were either transferred to other factories or written
off.
On 1 April 2019, the manufactory plants were transferred into RZZE—NFONA—H BEHEEL
investment properties. Details regarding the transfer is set out WEYHE - ERAEBHNFBEIHNMME
in Note 14. 14 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2020

9. Directors’, Chief Executive’s and

Employees’ Emoluments

(@) Directors’ emoluments

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year,

disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and

the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

For the year ended 31 March 2020

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Cheung Shu Wan (Note 2)
Ms. Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie
Ms. Cheung Lai See, Sophie
Dr. Cheung Shu Sang, William

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Mr. Cheung Lun (Note 4)

INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lai Ah Ming, Leon

Professor Lo Chung Mau

Dr. Chan How Chun (Note )

Ms. Choy Wai Sheun, Susan
(Note 6)

Total

HITES
RERELE W72
RED UL
RBH LT
RREEL

FUTES
R fm T (M iE4)

BYFHUTES
RERLE
EERHR

REFEL W5
g2 Wt (hite)

e

REMBHRESHE

BE-T-TF=A=t+-RLFE

9. EEX FETHAERE
EME

(@)

EEME

FARBAEMBN EHRARE
BAREPIRENEER TR

BABHBEMT:

BHE_FE_ZTF=-H=+—H

IFFE
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other scheme
Fee benefits Bonus contribution Total
ek EHREA
e HuEA A STEIEE mm
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FET
(Note 1)
(ft 1)
- 2,938 1,665 282 4,885
- 2,056 321 206 2,583
- 1,775 298 177 2,250
- 1,528 278 153 1,959
1,250 - - - 1,250
120 - - - 120
120 - - - 120
1,490 8,297 2,562 818 13,167
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REMBHRESHE

I
For the year ended 31 March 2020 HE_ZT-_ZTF=-A=+—HLEFE
9. Directors’, Chief Executive’s and 9. EE -FETHAEKE
Employees’ Emoluments (continued) EME e
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) @ E=Me(E)
For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE_FE-NF=HA=+—H
IEFE
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other scheme
Fee benefits Bonus  contribution Total
Hek RKRE A
we - HuEd L FEIER ok

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK'000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET FET

(Note 1)

(fiiz1)
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS BTES
Mr. Cheung Shu Wan (Note 2)  REITEB 5t & (A1 i22) = 2,156 235 282 2,673
Ms. Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie REZ &zt — 1,893 172 206 2,271
Ms. Cheung Lai See, Sophie REH Z+ = 1,611 148 177 1,936
Mr. Cheung Pui (Note 3) oI5 LA (f3) = 1,149 = 128 1,277
Dr. Cheung Shu Sang, Wiliam R £+ — 1,439 128 153 1,720
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ##{TEZ
Mr. Cheung Lun o R 76 & 1,500 - — — 1,500
INDEPENDENT NON- BYFHTES

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lai Ah Ming, Leon RERLE 120 = = = 120
Professor Lo Chung Mau BEERHE - - - - -
Dr. Chan How Chun BREEBL — = — — =
Total FEE] 1,620 8,248 683 946 11,497
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 HE_ZT-_ZTF=-A=+—HLFE
9. Directors’, Chief Executive’s and 9. EE -FETHAEKE
Employees’ Emoluments (continued) EME e
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continuead) @ E=M<(E)
Notes: Bt -
(1)  The bonus is determined with reference to the (1) FEADBRBERATREEEX

performance of the individual and the Group.

2) Mr. Cheung Shu Wan is the managing director of the
Company and his emoluments disclosed above include
those for services rendered by him as the managing
director. The Board considered that the duties of the
managing director were no different from that required
of a chief executive stipulated. The management of
the Company would regard that the term of managing
director of the Company will have the same meaning
as the chief executive of the Company.

3) Mr. Cheung Pui passed away on 4 February 2019.

(4) Mr. Cheung Lun passed away on 16 February 2020.

5) Dr. Chan How Chun resigned as an independent non-
executive director on 6 August 2019.

(6) Ms. Choy Wai Sheun, Susan was appointed as an
independent non-executive director on 29 August
2019.

(7) The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
for their services in connection with the management
of the affairs of the Company and the Group. The
non-executive director's emoluments shown above
was for his service as director of the Company or its
subsidiaries. The independent non-executive directors’
emoluments shown above were for their services as
directors of the Company.

Professor Lo Chung Mau waived his fees of
HK$120,000 (2019: HK$120,000) for the year ended
31 March 2020. Dr. Chan How Chun waived her fees
of nil (2019: HK$120,000) for the year ended 31 March
2020.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2020

9. Directors’, Chief Executive’s and

Employees’ Emoluments (continued)

(b)

Employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid employees of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2020 included four directors
(2019: four directors), details of whose remuneration are
set out above.

For the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019, the
remuneration of the one highest paid employee who are
neither a director nor chief executive of the Company

is as below:
Salaries and other allowances %ﬁ@&ﬁ@ 2 B
Discretionary bonus % AT 4

Retirement benefit scheme contribution B K& *'J 5T 31 3K

For the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019, the
remuneration of the remaining one highest paid
employee was within the following band:

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001/ ¥ &=
2,000,0005% #&

During the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors
and five highest paid employees as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office.

REMBHRESHE

BE_FT_FTF=-_A=1T—HBHLHFE

9. EEX FETHAEBKE

Ef£ e

(b)

EBEME
BE_Z-_TFE=-A=1+—HLHF
B AEELUSSHSESRE
ABEFE(CTENF ARER)
HMSFBHEHN L

HE_Z_ZFR-_ZT—NF=H
=+—HIFE  WIHFARAES
HITHABH N &= 5 E S8 B
AT

2020 2019
—s-25 Rt S
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
1,392 1,339

116 116

139 139

1,647 1,594

BE_Z - ZFE-_F—NLF=HA
=t+t—RHRLEFE ER—FZmaH

CHEEENTHEMR
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NEF
No. of No. of
employees employees
ESEH ES#H
1 1

HEZZ-_ZTFR-ZZT—NF=H
=+ BLEFE AEEHRERE
ERhEF RSN ES B
& BB EMARER S IIAR
EEFIERBERMAE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ¢
BE-_T-_SE=A=+—RALEE

For the year ended 31 March 2020

10. FREBIAX

10. Income Tax Expense

2020 2019
—E-ERF ZE-NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FiET
Current tax: RNEEHIE -
Hong Kong BB 1,270 797
PRC Enterprise Income Tax PRSI 4,421 4,991
5,691 5,788
(Over)underprovision in prior years: BEFEEE)BETE:
Hong Kong B (1,354) (210)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax FECEMGH 114 107
(1,240) (103)
Deferred taxation (Note 26) i SE 5 I8 (4 7£26) 926 48
5,377 5,738

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017
(the “Bill”) which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and
was gazetted on the following day. Under the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million of profits of
the qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits
above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of
group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation
Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of PRC subsidiaries
is 256% for both years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2020

10. Income Tax Expense (continued)

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the (loss)
profit before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive (expense) income as follows:

(Loss) profit before tax

Tax at the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of
16.5%

Tax effect of expenses not deductible
for tax purpose

Tax effect of income not taxable
for tax purpose

Effect of different tax rates in the PRC

Overprovision in respect of prior years

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised

Utilisation of tax losses previously not
recognised

Withholding tax on distributable profit of
subsidiaries in the PRC

Others

Tax charge for the year

REMBHRESHE

BE_FT_FTF=-_A=1T—HBHLHFE

10. RIS H A

RNEZ2BEARAIHEGEER RE
EmE (L) Kk AZBRE AT (ER)
wm A
2020 2019
—E-EF —NnF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
B T Al (& 18) % A (12,787) 33,852
BB B G E16.5%
(2,110) 5,586
AR 2 A X
HHEEE 3,404 5,354
|mIBHT 2 BA
xTﬁRﬂ§E/‘ (1,343) (10,879)
RABREE ARG R & 5,017 1,151
BEFERERE (1,240) (103)
AERBTEERE & 1,405 4115
Z BIARMER T IAE 18 2 (F
(284) (133)
FEERHE AR A
i A 2 TR AR 632 740
HAh (104) (98)
REEHIE T 5,377 5,733
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %’F 4R 7} BaEEMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 HE_Z_ZTF=-"A=T—HIEFE
- - 4= Nt
11. (Loss) Profit for The Year "N, ZEE(EER) =R
2020 2019
—E-EF —NnFE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FETT
(Loss) profit for the year has been arrived ZN4F E (E518) % A 2 F1 B
at after charging: T &IE
Staff salaries and allowances 8 T B & E B 223,863 267,811
Contributions to retirement benefits R RAE A 5T &AL 5K
schemes 16,096 21,735
Total staff costs, including @8 TR K
directors’ emoluments (BREFEH2) 239,959 289,546
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - HBEKR
equipment BB E 15,884 26,762
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EEFRAETE 183 —
Direct outgoings in relation to rental income 7 7 & W AR E # 3 H 907 849
Release of prepaid lease payments % bR TR M & 5K IE - 608
Auditor’s remuneration 1% 2R Bl & 2,286 2,274
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses 17 & X 78 1 W 22 A X 839,033 1,114,118
12. Dividends 12. R &
2020 2019
—EZEF —NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Dividends for ordinary shareholders of FAEHERIKETARAZ
the Company recognised as distribution I3 AR AR R 2 AR B
during the year
2020 interim dividend of HK2 cents ZETFHEHRKRE
(2019: 2019 interim dividend of T2
HK1 cent) per share —E-NF: —
FhHIAR ,%\1,% ﬂh) 6,709 3,354
2019 final dividend of HK3 cents —ZE-NFRAKE
(2019: 2018 final dividend of AR
HK6 cents) per share —T-RF: N
Eﬂiﬂﬂ % 2678 Il 10,063 20,126
16,772 03,480

Allan International Holdings Limited Z= fi B B2 &£ B 5 R 2 &
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2020

12. Dividends (continueq) 12. B E (@)

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final
dividend of HK7 cents per share in respect of the year

RBERERE  AABZEFTEHRIK
BEE -:2¢Eﬂ£+—5ﬂ:¢§

ended 31 March 2020 (2019: final dividend of HK3 cents RER SERTABIW (ZE—N : RERE
per share), in aggregate amount of HK$23,480,000 (2019: FAR3BN) - B2 5 A2,3488 B L (=

HK$10,063,000) has been proposed by the directors of the T—NF :1,00683THBx) o hEHIK
Company and is subject to approval by the shareholders in T2 REREBABRFREREIFRITZ
the forthcoming general meeting. The final dividend expects Hﬁﬁk@iﬁt/& o REARR BFEHAG N =

to be paid on 28 September 2020 to shareholders whose
names appear on the Register of Members of the Company
on 4 September 2020.

No diluted (loss) earnings per share has been presented for
both years as there were no potential dilutive ordinary shares
in issue.

Annual Report 2019/2020 — & —
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13. (Loss) Earnings per Share 13. R (B8 B F
The calculation of the basic (loss) earnings per share ERADEERRHEBANER(ER)
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the BN ZFETREBIATER :
following data:
2020 2019
—E-EF ZE-NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FiET
(Loss) earnings for the purpose of basic RERER(ER)ZF M
(loss) earnings per share ((Loss) profit S22 (ER) B (REE
for the year attributable to owners of the  AIDELALARARIHEAA Z
Company) (B18B) &= F) (18,164) 28,119
Number of shares
RGHE
2020 2019
—E-EF —NnF
‘000 ‘000
FR F A&
Number of ordinary shares for the purpose FtERE A (EE) BRI S
of basic (loss) earnings per share 2 E @R AR (D 8B 335,433 335,433

EMFERBRTEEHRETZEAR
B WL B H Bk #E (BB &7 -

NWEFE-B_BEFR
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I
For the year ended 31 March 2020 HE_ZT-_ZTF=-A=+—HLFE

14. REW

14. Investment Properties

2020 2019
—E-ERF —E-hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Fair value N¥E
Balance at beginning of year F ¥ 4 R 327,400 281,000
Transfer from property, plant and EREEYE - RE RS
equipment and right-of-use assets RiERAEEE 118,537 —
Gain from change in fair value upon EREREVERD
transfer to investment properties NEEE)E A 114,410 —
Addition NE 1,425 —
(Loss) gain from changes in fair values NP EEBMELERN
recognised in profit or loss (B 18) BF RIBE R ER (52,284) 46,400
Exchange adjustments P o (15,943) =
Balance at end of year FRER 493,545 327,400
Unrealised (loss) gain on property revaluation EB B HAZ AEIR
included in profit or loss MEBLER) AT (52,284) 46,400

AEEAZEHENTAHEZ @R D
= -BULEERE  S8AXTHEE -

The Group leases out various offices, car parks and
manufacturing plant under operating leases with rentals

payable monthly. The leases typically run for a fixed period
of 1 to 3 years and the lease payments are fixed over the
lease term.

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as a result
of the lease arrangements, as all leases are denominated in
the respective functional currencies of group entities. The
lease contracts do not contain residual value guarantee and/
or lessee’s option to purchase the property at the end of
lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2020

14. BEYWE »

14. Investment Properties (continued)

Manufactory plants with carrying values of HK$103,085,000
and the related right-of-use assets with carrying value of
HK$15,452,000 were transferred to investment properties on
1 April 2019 and measured using the fair value model. The
fair value of the property and the right-of-use assets on the
date of transfer was HK$232,947,000 in aggregate, resulting
in a revaluation gain of HK$114,410,000 and a deferred tax of
HK$28,603,000 recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in property revaluation reserve. On 10 April
2019, the Group has leased a portion of the manufactory
plants to an independent third party.

Other than transfer from property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets mentioned above, during the current year,
the Group acquired factory facilities located in the PRC for
a consideration of approximately HK$1,425,000 (2019: nil).

The Group’s property interests held under operating leases to earn
rentals are measured using fair value model and are classified and
accounted for as investment properties. These investment properties
are manufacturing plants, office units and car park spacing.

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties as at
31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019 has been arrived at on
the basis of a valuation carried out on the respective dates by
RHL Appraisal Ltd., a firm of independent qualified professional
surveyor not connected to the Group.

In determining the fair value of the relevant properties,
the directors of the Company works closely with qualified
professional surveyor to establish the appropriate valuation
techniques and inputs to the model.

The valuation of the investment properties in Hong Kong, which
falls under level 3 of the fair value hierarchy, has been arrived at by
using direct comparison method by reference to market evidence
of transaction prices for similar properties in the same locations
and conditions. The valuation of the investment properties in the
PRC, which falls under level 3 of the fair value hierarchy, has
been arrived at by using term and reversion analysis of investment
method by capitalising rental income on a fully leased basis and
the potential reversionary rental income at market level.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2020

14. REWHE =)

14. Investment Properties (continued)

In estimating the fair value of the property, the highest and

best use of the property is their current use.

Office units in Hong Kong
2020: HK$270,000,000
2019: HK$322,000,000

NREBNEFE
:?:gﬁ 2{87,0008 8 T
— N 3(82,2008 B T

Car park spacing in
Hong Kong

2020: HK$5,000,000

2019: HK$5,400,000

LR E SR BN
_’7’_7 ¢ 5001%/%71:
—NE B0EB T

Manufacturing plants in the PRC

2020: HK$218,545,000
2019: nil

fir 1 B ) B4 TR

_;_7¢ 2{81854B5T BT

—NE:E

There were no transfers into or out of level 3 during the year.

The Group’s investment properties in Hong Kong were
pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the Group at

Valuation technique(s)
HERD

Direct comparison

BERUR

Direct comparison

EELE

Term and reversion
analysis of
investment approach

REBBMER DT

the end of both years in Note 25.

A&

Significant unobservable input(s)
EXRTHREZBAZH

The weighted average market unit
rate, adjusted by the size, view and
floor level of property and timing
of comparable transactions, of
HK$22,881 per square foot (2019:
HK$27,288 per square foot)

MEFETHER  BEENER -
REMBEKTIARATERRZZE)
REZHAE - ARAHNETS

M5 BB AT T R22881%
T(ZE-NF: §FHR27,288%
7T)

The weighted average market unit
rate, adjusted by timing of the
comparable transaction and
accessibility of the car park
spacing, of HK$2,500,000 each
(2019: HK$2,700,000 each)

IEFATISER AT BRORS
REMEESENTELAE &
@ m2508 R T (ZE—NGF: G
2108 7T)

The weighted average monthly
market rent, adjusted by rental in
reversionary period, vacancy rate
and yield, of RMB15.06 per square
meter (approximately HK$16.42 per
square meter)

M%iﬂﬁ%ﬁé BEMSKTL

BENEEREKA  ZEXKME
ﬁﬂﬂ o FTERAM TG A
BHE BT IHKI5BTARE
(BFRAM16.42%T)

%ﬁ%%mﬂ$@ﬁ YES=0EdER b

ERIAR o

Relationship of unobservable
inputs to fair value
TOBEZBAZHE
AYEZEBE

A significant decrease in the
weighted average market unit
rate used would result in a
significant decrease in fair value,
and vice versa.

ﬁ%%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%%%T%ﬁgﬁ
PRI o

A significant decrease in the
weighted average market unit
rate used would result in a
significant decrease in fair value,
and vice versa.

ERmSERNEE N EREN
RPENBE TR R2HR -

A significant decrease in the
weighted average monthly
market rent used would result
in a significant decrease in fair
value, and vice versa.

ERNEATSHESMNEE TRR
BHRAFENEE TR R
é?\i\ o

REAF=—RILZAEALEH -

AEEEFSHNRENEEHERA A
ERNAFEERFAEMNFE2HRTA

SEMRITRE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2020

REMBHRESHE
54

2 E_FTE=A=+—HItFE

15. Property, Plant and Equipment 15. ¥ - BERK®E

Furniture,
Leasehold Office Factory Plant and fixtures and Moulds Motor Construction
land  buildings  buildings machinery equipment and tools  vehicles in progress Total
BE#RE HE £EB
HE+TH HEEF IBYE R#E k#fE HARIA AE  HEBRIR &t
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
(Note) (Note)
(Hz) (Hi#)
COST KAE
At 1 April 2018 R-ZE-\§EA—H 125 1,019 191,568 398,652 191,982 47,011 10,063 37,94 878,261
Exchange adjustments SNERE = = (8,583)  (26,389) (9,730) (188) (318) 2,719) (47,927
Transfer BY = = 43,505 = = = = (43,505) =
Additions "B - - - 2,069 11,252 1,361 1,078 8,283 24,043
Disposals/write-off HE /i - — (140000  (75,899)  (111,721)  (29,581) (778) - (231979
At 31 March 2019 R=Z-NE=A=+-H 125 1,019 212,490 298,333 81,783 18,603 10,045 - 622,398
Adjustments upon application of &% /& 8 B # &

HKFRS 16 FI6H PR (125) - - - - - - - (125)
At 1 April 2019 (restated) RZZE-LENA—B(EF) - 1,019 212490 298,333 81,783 18,603 10,045 = 622,273
Exchange adjustments HERE - - 2,939)  (16,059) (3,335) 89) (615) - (23,036)
Transfer to investment properties &% 1% &4 % (f1:214)

(Note 14) - - (135,164) - - - - - (135,164)

Additions WE - - - 2,902 6,930 1,894 = = 11,726
Disposals/write-off HE /i - - - (21889 8,750) () (1,795) - (32439
At 31 March 2020 W_Z-FF=f=+-H - 1,019 74,387 263,288 76,628 20,404 7,635 - 443,361
DEPREGIATION &
At 1 April 2018 RZE-\EmA—A & 1,019 90,123 374,128 183,429 43,075 6,997 - 698,776
Exchange adjustments SHERE - - (3,204) (25,094) (9,231) (168) (264) = (37,961)
Provided for the year KEE#E = = 6,825 10,659 5,494 2,463 1,321 - 26,762
Eliminated on disposals/write-off (& /# B # $ = = (3,778)  (75562) (110,975  (29,085) (433) - (219,839)
At 31 March 2019 R=Z-NE=A=+-H 6 1,019 89,966 284,131 68,717 16,285 7,621 - 467,744
Adjustment upon application of EFB BB RE

HKFRS 16 F165EMAE ) - - - - - - - ()
At 1 April 2019 (restated) RZB-NEENA—R (&) - 1,019 80,966 284131 68717 16,285 7,621 - 467739
Exchange adjustments SNERE = = (2,244 (15,200) (2,817) (80) (588) - (20,929)
Transfer to investment properties E%ZE R &N £ (f1:214)

(Note 14) = = (32,079 = = = = = (32,079)
Provided for the year KEE#E = = 2,691 5,195 5416 1,594 988 - 15,884
Eliminated on disposals/write-off (& /#i  # $ = = = (21,080) (8,628) (5) (1,578) - (31,291)
At 31 March 2020 R-Z-FF=A=+-H - 1,019 58,334 253,046 62,688 17,794 6,443 - 399,324
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 March 2020 RZZE-Z5=f=1—H - - 16,053 10,242 13,940 2,610 1,192 - 44,037
At 31 March 2019 R=ZE-NE=ZA=+-H 120 - 122,624 14,202 13,066 2,318 2,424 = 154,654
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

I
For the year ended 31 March 2020 HE_ZT-_ZTF=-A=+—HLFE
15. Property, Plant and Equipment 15. 1% - WERZHE =

(Continued)

Note: The buildings situated in the leasehold land had been fully BiF: MREELHHNEFETENE
depreciated but still in use by the Group. The leasehold land BHHEASEFER HELHHEMN
is situated in Hong Kong. RE -

The above items of property, plant and equipment, except Ll FIEWE - BRERZE EEIER

for construction in progress, are depreciated on a straight- SN Z I ETIE Y| ERE G518

line basis at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land HE i Over the lease terms of 912 years
& 8912

Office buildings and factory buildings PMEBFRTHMPDE 4% or over the lease term, if shorter
4% R EEH R (& E)

Plant and machinery R 55 5% 1 Mot 25 15%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment RE KBERKE 20-33",%
Moulds and tools BAKRTA 20-33",%
Motor vehicles AE 20%

16. Right-of-use Assets
16. EFAEEE Leasehold lands

HE L
HK$'000
T T
CARRYING VALUES AR H B
As at 1 April 2019 RZZE—NLFWMA—AH 19,949
Transfer to investment properties (Note 14) EREREYEMN Z14) (15,452)
Depreciation provided for the year REFITERE (183)
As at 31 March 2020 R-Z-_FF=H=+—H 4,314
Expense relating to short-term leases and other leases 1 ¥4 & B & & B 1% R &= 2RI 2516
with lease terms end within 12 months of the date of  §R#E12{E AR E|HAM S HAHE E &
initial application of HKFRS 16 Hip HHAB BB 3,633
Expense relating to leases of low-value assets, excluding IKBEEEHEG@HNER -
short-term leases of low value assets TEREEREEEENEHEE 18
Total cash outflow for leases HEMIR ML REE 3,651
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2020

16.

17.

Right-of-use Assets (continuea)

For both years, the Group leases several industrial buildings
for its operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed
terms of 1 year to 912 years. Lease terms are negotiated on
an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms
and conditions. In determining the lease term and assessing
the length of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies
the definition of a contract and determines the period for
which the contract is enforceable.

The Group owns several industrial buildings where its
manufacturing plants and warehouses are primarily located.
The Group is the registered owner of these property
interests, including the underlying leasehold lands. Lump
sum payments were made upfront to acquire these property

interests.

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for office
premises. As at 31 March 2020, the portfolio of short-term
leases is similar to the portfolio of short-term leases to which
the short-term lease expense disclosed above.

REMBHRESHE

BE_FT_FTF=-_A=1T—HBHLHFE

16. FHAREEE®

RMEFE AEEHEHRETEET
EEE HESWZETHR A F32
9124 - TH B 15 SR IR (@ Bl 15 0 i 7 FE
EEPBERBTRZIGR RGNS -
AN SR B E B R Ko AF fih A AT R
ZHRE KAAHNZERLEESD
A] 58 il BT 2 BARR o

AEERELZEIXRET  TEREE
HEBMERER - AKBERUEYMHEE
sm(BRAREEL ) 2EMEBA -

ERAEL —REMFTABBHEDE

s
MR o

AEBTH/MASHAILEHEE -
F_g_yi A=+—H ' EHHEE
AR PN EREE B ENEH
Tﬂifﬁ’%ﬁﬁi

Prepaid Lease Payments 17. BT HERKE
The Group’s prepaid lease payments represent land use AEBZENEEREBRERUAFRHZ
rights located in the PRC. T A o
2019
—E-NEF
HK$'000
FHET
Analysed for reporting purposes as: TEEHR AT 2 H i
Non-current assets FERBEE 19,221
Current assets MENEE 608
19,829
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2020

18. Club Debentures

CARRYING VALUE
At 1 April 2018, 31 March 2019

Disposal

At 31 March 2020

The club debentures with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment annually and whenever there is an indication that
they may be impaired. The directors of the Company are of

REMBHRESHE

BE-T-BF=A=t+-ALFE

18. BT & %

HK$'000
F&ET
BREE
R-ZZE—N\FW™A—H "
—E-AF=RA=+—H 13,176
He (2,158)
R-_ZTE-_FTF=HF=+—H 11,018

BEHRNGMESFNSFEERERR
REBDRBTRRESERE - ANAT
EERB2EMSEE RALERE

the opinion that no impairment indication was identified with R o

reference to market value.

19. Inventories

Raw materials
Work in progress
Finished goods

R #
& m

SLAX an

A
19. &
2020 2019
—EEH —ET-nF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FETT
20,733 27,902
12,208 13,632
23,366 34,646
56,307 76,180

118 Allan International Holdings Limited Zf f& Bl B &£ E A R A 5



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2020

20. Trade Receivables/Other Receivables

Trade receivables — sales of goods
Less: Allowance for credit loss

Other receivables (Note)

Total trade and other receivables

Note:

Under the application of HKFRS 15, the amount of trade
receivables as at 1 April 2018 is HK$287,948,000.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables,
presented based on the invoice date which approximated the
respective revenue recognition dates:

0-90 days
91-120 days
121-180 days

As at 31 March 2020, the Group’s other receivables mainly
include value added tax recoverable of HK$7,802,000 (2019:
HK$10,355,000), which will be recovered within one year.

REMBHRESHE

BE-ZP-FF=A=t+-ALFE

20. EWWE BRI HibEW

BR X

2020 2019
—EEF —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
EUWESER—EREE 134,658 251,848
BoEEBEBEE (940) (1,313)
133,718 250,535
E b R IR BR 3R (A 7E) 16,788 16,967

JE e 5 BR 3R % E th fE U
BRI 150,506 267,502

Mt -

RZTE-_THE=A=+—H8 ' K&H
R HE BRI EZEBIE78082T
BT (ZF—N%F :1,03585T 8 7T)

ZAIR B E B R - AR — F R

Yem -

REFBMBRELENEISHKOER
RZZE-N\FHA-BNEZRUIERR

B A2188,794E8 T B T o

UTAEKEZESRZANFEBIUAREE

HAEMZBERON KN BZEER
EREH -

2020 2019
—ECEHF —E-—NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
0-90H 114,599 198,339
91-120H 18,585 51,909
121-180H 1,474 1,600
134,658 251,848
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2020

20.

21.

Trade Receivables/Other Receivables
(Continued)
As at 31 March 2020, included in the Group’s trade

receivables balance are debtors with aggregated
carrying amount of approximately HK$27,229,000 (2019:
HK$56,321,000) which are past due at the reporting date.
Out of the past due balances, HK$9,000 (2019: HK$66,000)
has been past due 90 days or more and is not considered
as in default because there had not been significant change
in credit quality of the relevant debtors and the amounts are
still considered recoverable. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other
receivables are set out in Note 29.

Financial Assets at Fair Value
Through Profit or Loss

Financial assets mandatorily measured at FVTPL:

o
1]

Unit-linked funds
Debt instruments

o

B
H h

Ll
ﬂl:
bt
52

\
/l

Investment in unit-linked funds represent pool investments,
comprising equity and debts securities in various markets.
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20. EWWE SR HibEW

21.

BR )

R-E-TF=A=+—A AEHE
WEZEFBIERmMES #£2,72289F
BT (CE—NE: 563281 TBT)ZE
BHERWERR - LB B BT - BT
75 70 (20194F : 686 /%8 JT) B 8 H190K
SERKRE ARBEEEFANERE
ELEERELAENMERABTRE - B
W TR BEL - REBWERZFLHE
HEFHE AT -

BN EMERERRARETEFSH
K 5E29 ©

BEBERRAVETEZ
ETRMEE

TREERTMBEBEBSREQATES
=
2020 2019
—g-8F% -T2 hF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
11,815 18,698
11,463 16,458
23,278 35,156

BREREBEUERAES

EEREM

B BREREETSNREREHES



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2020

22. Debt Instruments at Fair Value
Through Other Comprehensive
Income

23.

Investment in listed debt instruments with
fixed interest rate from 1.64% to 4.25%
(2019: 1.43% to 4.50%)

4.50%)

Details of impairment assessment are set out in Note 29.

Short-Term Deposits/Bank Balances
and Cash

(@)

(b)

Short-term deposits

Short-term deposits are deposits placed with banks or
financial institution for investment purpose. The short-
term deposits carry fixed interest rates with effective
interest rates ranging from 0.10% to 2.66% (2019:
0.10% to 5.75%) per annum.

Bank balances and cash
Bank balances carry interest at market rates which
range from 0% to 1.3% (2019: 0% to 0.5%) per annum.

B

REMBHRESHE

2 E_FTE=A=+—HItFE

& 7 R B A1.64% F4.25%
AZ EtMEBIAKSE
(ZE—NF 143% =

AFEFAHMEER
WEEIR

2020 2019

—E-FF —ETNF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

25,664 31,108

BB BT FE BB M 29 e

23. MHIER RITHEREE

1z

(@)

(b)

BHER

TR RERRITREREER
WEBH - REFRIREE BEINE
BHRZEFE - R R010%ZE2.66%
(ZZ—NF : 010% E5.75%) °

BITEEFENRS
RITHEFIRT ST EETE - F£8
#0% E1.3% (ZE —NF: 0% =
0.5%) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2020

24. Trade Payables 24. BHE BER

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented REZZAHEVNN 2 ENESERZE
based on the invoice date. HR AT QD—I—

2020 2019

—E-ERF —ZE-NEF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAETT

0-90 days 0-90H 72,915 130,535
91-120 days 91-120H 16,719 8,505
>120 days HBi@1208 2,360 1,795
91,994 140,835

The credit period on purchase of goods is 30 to 90 days. HEMMERI0OEEVRZEEE

/= =,
25. Secured Bank Loan 25. BEEEARITER
2020 2019
—E-EF —h4
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAE T
Secured bank loan, with carrying amount AR ITER - AMEEZ
repayable (Note): BREEA )
Within one year —F A 5,124 5,124
Within a period of more than one year ZR—F BT HEA
but not exceeding two years W £F B fE A 5,124 5,124
Within a period of more than two years ZIRME - BT B
but not exceeding five years AEHREA 15,372 15,372
Within a period of more than five years AFMN EHER 5,541 10,665
31,161 36,285
Less: Amounts due within one year shown M : 5IBRRAREEE 2
under current liabilities —FRNEREHE (5,124) (5,124)
Amounts shown under non-current liabilites FBR R IER B BE 2 & 58 26,037 31,161
Note: The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates Hat: EHEFRSBRERERBEMH
set out in the loan agreements. ZEFRAH -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2020

25. Secured Bank Loan (continueq)

26.

The bank loan is variable-rate borrowing which carry interest
at 1-month Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”)
plus 0.8% (2019: 1-month HIBOR plus 0.8% per annum). As
at 31 March 2020, the effective interest rate on the Group’s
borrowing is 1.91% per annum (2019: 2.15% per annum).

As at 31 March 2020, banks loan of HK$31,161,000 (2019:
HK$36,285,000) is secured by the Group’s investment
properties with a fair value approximately HK$275,000,000
(2019: HK$327,400,000) (Note 14).

REMBHRESHE

BE_FT_FTF=-_A=1T—HBHLHFE

25. BiIRHERITE R

RITERRIDFEZBE  FEEXER
BARITRENS(—@EA)I0.8% (=ZF
—NF:BARITRAERS(—MEA)M
0.8%) c RZZE_ZEF=HA=+—H &
EEEBREBEEFMNER1I% (ZZE—N
F-EREEFRER215%) °

RZE_TF=A=+—H RITEXK
SI6EITHEIL(ZE —LF: 362885
THAT)BEEERENEARTEL R
87,5008 BT (ZE— L5 : 3182,7405%
7 7T ) 1E 15 R (B 5E14) ©

Deferred Taxation 26. IE it %t 18

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement
of financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities
have been offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred
tax balances for financial reporting purposes:

Accelerated
tax

ERAMBRRRZZ2IME - HETE
EHRBEEERABEDEE - ATRAR
MB2RENEERIBLE RO -

Withholding

tax on
distributable Fair value
profit of change on
subsidiaries investment

depreciation in the PRC properties Total
L B A
MEHRE TIEEFN REVED
wE ZENB AFEEH HEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FHET
At 1 April 2018 RZE-—N\FMA—H (4,949) (2,256) — (7,205)
Credit (charge) to profit or loss A 18 % BR B 8 (303 692 (740) - (48)
At 31 March 2019 and RZZE-N%F
1 April 2019 _H_+ B X
—WFHA—A (4,257) (2,996) = (7,253)
Charge to profit or loss M8 & BRHR (294) (632) = (926)
Charge to other comprehensive — E 47 & U 25 08
income — - (28,603) (28,603)
At 31 March 2020 R-E_EF
—A=1+—H (4,551) (3,628) (28,603) (36,782)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2020

26. IE it F 18 (#)

26. Deferred Taxation (continueq)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused
tax losses of HK$59,034,000 (2019: HK$65,619,000) available
for offset against future profits. No deferred tax assets has
been recognised in respect of these tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future project streams.

Included in unrecognized tax losses of HK$54,844,000 (2019:
HK$59,912,000) that will be expired in various dates through
2024 (2019: 2023). Other losses may be carried forward
indefinitely.

Under the EIT Law in the PRC and implementation regulations
issued by the State Council, withholding tax at 5% rate is
imposed on dividends declared in respect of profits earned
by PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred
taxation has been fully provided for in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of temporary differences
attributable to retained profits of PRC subsidiaries.

27. Share Capital

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each

Authorised: VA TE

At beginning and end of the year P 4F ) % 5F 4
Issued and fully paid: BEETREE:

At beginning and end of the year NGNS EE
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MARER  AEBBERBANTIE
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27. RZA

BREECIOET 2 E B

2020 & 2019 2020 & 2019
—E-BER ZEC-BFR
—2-nE —2-RnE
Number of
shares HK$’000
R EE FET
600,000,000 60,000
335,432,520 33,543




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2020

28. Capital Risk Management

29.

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes secured bank loan disclosed in Note 25, net of cash
and cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of
the Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves and
retained profits.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
on a quarterly basis. As part of this review, the directors
of the Company consider the cost of capital and the

risks associated with each class of capital. Based on
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28. EXEABERE

REBEEEN
AEREEERE -
A FER/RREREARRE
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BERRITER(NHME2BRKE) FRE
RBREFERARREEAREELS
ETERCETEA  HidfHEERRE
i A o

ARREERFERNEARE - ES
EREARAREBENHBRRERS

B 2B
AEEKEBIARE

c RIBARBEEMER
BATHIRL - B

recommendations of the directors of the Company, the Group ﬁ FESKEOIRAEER  AFEHAE
will balance its overall capital structure through the payment BEARNLERE -
of dividends and new share issues as well as the issue of
new debt or the redemption of existing debt.
Financial Instruments 20. e T A
29a. Categories of financial instruments 29a. £ T EEH
2020 2019
—E_EH — &
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAETT
Financial assets TEMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost REEK AT R 2
TEEE 792,754 809,771
Financial assets at FVTPL BBBREAFEFEZ
SREE 23,278 35,156
Debt instruments at FVTOCI BEAFEFAEMER
WRzEBHBITE 25,664 31,108
Financial liabilities cRBHE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost R ARTER 2
e = 127,457 177,438
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For the year ended 31 March 2020

20. £t T B

29. Financial Instruments (continueg)

29b. Financial risk management objectives and policies 29b. MHEREEERERBE

The Group’s major financial instruments include debt
instruments at FVTOCI, financial assets at FVTPL,
trade receivables, other receivables, short-term
deposits, bank balances and cash, trade payables,
other payables and secured bank loan. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes.
The risks associated with these financial instruments
include market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk
and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are

implemented on a timely and effective manner.

AEEZTEEHMTABEER
TARAFEFAEMEEK S
BERERBEATEMEZERE
= BRE SRR EEKE
R BHERK - RITEHRLES
ENEZERR - R ENERRRE
ERRTER - ZF2RMTAFB
REMERE ZFEMTAM
MEREET SRR (EERR
MEEREEBEERRR)  FE
RiRkri#EER - TXRL
MEEZEFRRZIERE - EEE
B RS E R R AR KB
MBI REEE 215 -

Market risk % B
Currency risk B [z

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign
currency sales and purchases, which exposes the
Group to foreign currency risk. The carrying amounts
of the Group’s foreign currency denominated monetary
assets and monetary liabilities at the end of the
reporting period are as follows:

RATAHBHEM B AT AINEETT
BEE REEAZINERR R
REHERRD - REBEUINESE
LEBBEEREBABZEREE
LI

Liabilities Assets
=R BE

2020 2019 2020 2019
—E-ERF —ZTNF ZEBEZEFE —ZE-ANF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET FET FHET
United States dollar (‘USD”) %7t 7,929 4,047 558,917 619,630
Renminbi (‘RMB”) AR - = 19,523 20,659
HK$ &I - = 487,001 485,859
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2020

20. £t T B

29. Financial Instruments (continueg)

29b. Financial risk management objectives and policies 20b. BHXEAKREEEEREEK(E)
(Continued)
Market risk (Continued) 45 B B (4E)
Currency risk (Continued) Em e ()
Sensitivity analysis X [E 2
The Group is mainly exposed to exchange rate fluctuations AEBEFEAZETL BTEA
of USD, HK$ and RMB against the functional currency REELSESEERIEY - 8
of respective group entities, which is either HK$ or RMB. BT AREZIERFERR -
As the HK$ is pegged to USD, the management of the AR ITEIE TR - NAREE
Company are of the opinion that the Group’s exposure to [E R & 7 & B 25 T R b2 48 3 B

USD relative to HK$ is minimal and accordingly, no foreign
currency sensitivity analysis on USD is presented.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 3%
(2019: 3%) increase and decrease in functional currency
of respective group entities against the relevant foreign

Efﬁff,ﬁ IR A BETTIEINE
BREDHN -

TRAJHAEBASEEERNERE
ERVEERENLARINEERE
\&%%mﬂag:i_ﬂg.

currencies. These percentages are the rates used 3%)c ZEBD L BRAINIEE

when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key 2 A B IE =R N R B ﬁﬁFﬁZ!ﬁlW
management personnel and represent management’s X - WAEEEHERAESE
assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign BH o E  MRESNERE

exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only
outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary
items and adjusts their translation at the year end for
a 3% (2019: 3%) change in foreign currency rates. A
positive number below indicates a decrease in post-
tax loss or an increase in post-tax profit where the
functional currencies of respective group entities weaken
3% against the foreign currencies. A 3% (2019: 3%)
strengthening of the functional currencies of respective
group entities against the relevant currencies, there
would be an equal and opposite impact on the profit.

Impact of HK$

MINBHE 2 mEFHE¥IAR -
WRFRABRELREIR (ZF—N
F 1 3%) AR BR SN [E R B
T IE B3R R OR A B AR B A 3 R
BumAIEI - EPEKEERIE
f?%i&i*ﬁﬁ%?\\%%ﬁ%% ° fH &
EERNEESRELEBEINE
EJZTExﬁM\\ﬂ%%?ﬁS% —EBhEF:
3%) » F& H M E KR E MR

=727
-2

Impact of RMB

TR E AR hE
2020 2019 2020 2019
—E-EF —NFE ZEBZEHF —NE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FiE T F#ET FiE T
(Loss) profit for the year AE(BE)EF 10,958 10,932 489 518
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20. £t T B

29. Financial Instruments (continueg)

20b. MEEMREERERKEK(E)

29b. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The above is mainly attributable to the exposure to
short-term deposits, outstanding receivables and
payables at the year end.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk
in relation to fixed-rate short-term deposits, debt
instruments at FVTPL and debt instruments at FVTOCI.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
in relation to variable-rate debt instruments at FVTPL,
secured bank loan (see Note 25 for details of the loan)
and bank balances.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for variable-rate
secured bank loan at the end of the reporting period.
The analysis is prepared assuming the secured bank
loan outstanding at the end of the reporting period were
outstanding for the whole year. A 10 basis point (2019:
10 basis point) increase or decrease is used when
reporting interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment
of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.
Variable-rate debt instruments at FVTPL and bank
balances are excluded from sensitivity analysis as the
directors of the Company consider that the exposure
of cash flow interest rate risk arising from variable-rate
is insignificant. The management also considers the
exposure of the fair value interest rate risk of fixed-rate
short-term deposits, debt instruments at FVTPL and
FVTOCI is insignificant.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2020

20. £t T B

29. Financial Instruments (continueg)

29b. Financial risk management objectives and policies 20b. MBERAKREBREERBE(Z)
(Continued)
Market risk (Continued) B E ()
Interest rate risk (Continued) T 2 & iz (42 )
Sensitivity analysis (Continued) B E DT (48)

If interest rates had been 10 basis point (2019: 10 basis
point) higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s post-tax loss for the year ended
31 March 2020 would increase/decrease by HK$26,000
(2019: post-tax profit decrease/increase by HK$30,000).
This is attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest
rates on its secured bank loans.

Other price risk
is exposed to price
investments in unit-linked funds and other listed debt

The Group risk through its
instruments. The management considers these risks
are insignificant and therefore no sensitivity analysis
on such risks has been prepared. However, the
management will closely monitor such exposures and

consider hedging such exposures should the need

fiti ¥ R 5 K1I0E (=T — N
FA0EHRFEEMIEZ A
RERTE  AASEEHE—ZT—
EFE=ZA=+—HIFE 2HBHE
EEBE I, R2BeT T (=
T-NF: BRBR ST
BB o TIREAEEF KT
B R A X o

B 1t 18 15 /2 2
AEBRRESNELEAESD
/\ﬁﬂimﬁi‘%lﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁuu{ﬁﬂﬂ
o BEEEE DI FRE R

BRE - Rt /xﬁﬂlttwﬂﬁﬁf’ﬁﬂﬁl
REDH - A ERESEYD
ERNLFRBRMEAFTRR
BE PR

arise.
Credit risk and impairment assessment =B & fE R B EF G
Trade receivables TEW B Z B

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the
event of the counterparties’ failure to perform their
obligations as at 31 March 2020 in relation to each
class of recognised financial assets is the carrying
amount of those assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The Group does not hold
any collateral or other credit enhancements to cover its
credit risk associated with its financial assets.
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2. £t T B

29. Financial Instruments (continueg)

29b. Financial risk management objectives and policies 20b. MBEEAKREEEERBE(Z)

(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its
trade receivables and the Group has been largely
dependent on a small number of customers for a
substantial portion of its business. The top three
customers represent over 70% (2019: 83%) of the trade
receivables as at 31 March 2020. The failure of these
customers to make required payment could have a
substantial negative impact on the Group’s profits and
liquidity.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group performs
impairment assessment under ECL model upon
application of HKFRS 9 on trade balances individually.
In this regard, the directors of the Company consider
that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the
Group applies internal credit rating for its trade debtors.
The following table provides information about the
exposure to credit risk for trade debtors, which are
assessed individually for debtors.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2020

29. Financial Instruments (continueg)

29b. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

Internal credit rating R &R 15 A RE AR
Grade 1: Low risk fﬁﬁﬂ 9%

Grade 2: Normal risk 28 2 b
Grade 3: Watch list ?EE%%%E
Grade 4: Doubtful 1% 5%

Low risk: Reputable counterparty with low probability of
default, long and stable business relationship and well

established repayment pattern

Normal risk: The counterparty sometimes repays after

due dates but settle in full

Watch list: The counterparty has lower default risk and

usually settle after due date

Doubtful:

credit risk since initial recognition through information

developed internally or external resources

There have been significant increases in

REMBHRESHE
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20. £t T B

20b. MBERAKREBREERBE(Z)
=B R R B EF G (E)
JEW B Z B ()
2020 2019
—E-EHF — N
Gross Gross
Average carrying Average carrying
loss rates amount loss rates amount
T KRR REAE FHEXX REZE
% HK$’000 % HK$'000
FE T FAE T
0.11 95,369 0.10 200,252
2.10 39,143 = =
6.23 128 215 51,596
21.02 18 = =
134,658 251,848
KRR : FERINXZHFRE

FER - BHBERE
iR

BREEXR T2HEE
BREE RXHGHFHNEHERR
RYBRE
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 HE_ZT-_ZTF=-A=+—HLFE
29. Financial Instruments (continued) 20. @ T R
29b. Financial risk management objectives and policies 20b. X EAREEAZEREK(E)
(Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) EERERERBEFGE)
Trade receivables (Continued) JEWE ZBR (&)
The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL TRABRE B 75 0EEREW
that has been recognised for trade receivables under EoRFNEHENEESEE
the simplified approach. g :
Lifetime ECL
(not credit
impaired)
2 H7E
EEBA
(EEERME)
HK$'000
FETT
At at 31 March 2018 under HKAS 39 R=ZZE—N\FE=H=+—H
(IRIBE B 2T ERIE395%) —
Adjustment upon application of HKFRS 9 FERBE BB RMELELFESRE 2 AR 1,019
As at 1 April 2018 — As restated R-ZZE-N\FMOA—-R(E?) 1,019
Changes due to financial instruments RZZE—N\FEOH—HE®ER

recognised as at 1 April 2018: SR T A%

— Impairment losses reversed — BORE EETE (1,019)
New financial assets originated or purchased E£SBERNI ©REE 1,313
As at 31 March 2019 R-B-NAF=H=1+—H 1,313
Changes due to financial instruments RZZE—NEWA—BE®ER

recognised as at 1 April 2019: SRIT AR

— Impairment losses reversed — BOREEE (1,313)
New financial assets originated or purchased E£SHBERN ©REE 940
As at 31 March 2020 R-ZZE_TF=A=+—H 940
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2020

29. Financial Instruments (continueg)

29b. Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)
Changes in the loss allowance for trade receivables are
mainly due to:

IR E RN E SR B
AR B 731183,465 88T
BT (ZE—NF:
2185184 88T 4 IT)

Reversal from settlement in full of trade %[ & 4 E AR EE A
receivables with a gross carrying 2185,184FE8TF & T

New trade receivable with gross
carrying amount of HK$134,658,000
(2019: HK$251,848,000)

amount of HK$251,848,000 (ZE—N%F:
(2019: HK$288,967,000) 288,896 &7 T &)
B FE UL B 5 BR 5K

2. €M T B

REMBHRESHE

HE_T_2F=-A=+—HILFE

20b. M EBEEEERKE(E)

1= & /7 B2 R 6l 1B 77 1% (4E)
JEWK B B IR (B
BUEZEANBIEBEFES T

ERAR:
2020 2019
=E —T-NEF
Increase Increase
(decrease) (decrease)
in lifetime ECL in lifetime ECL
2HEHREER 2> HEHEE
EBIEEMOEL)  EEEINORD)
Not credit- Not credit-
impaired impaired
kEERE 1 ERE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAE T
940 1,313
(1,313) (1,019)
E-E-FFFR
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 HE_Z_ZTF=-"A=T—HIEFE

20. £t T B

29. Financial Instruments (continueg)

20b. MEEMREERERKEK(E)

29b. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
Other receivables

For other receivables, the directors of the
Company make periodic individual assessment on
the recoverability of other receivables based on
historical settlement records, past experience, and
also quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportive forward-looking information.
The directors of the Company believe that there are no
significant increase in credit risk of these amounts since
initial recognition and the Group provided impairment
based on 12m ECL. For the year ended 31 March
2020 and 2019, the Group assessed the ECL for
other receivables were insignificant and thus no loss
allowance was recognised.

Bank balances and short-term deposits

The credit risk on bank balances and short term
deposits are limited because the counterparties are
reputable banks in Hong Kong or financial institutions
with high credit ratings assigned by international credit-
rating agencies. The ECL of bank balances and short-
term deposits was assessed to be immaterial.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2020

29. Financial Instruments (continued) 20. £ T B

29b. Financial risk management objectives and policies 29b. MIKEREEEERBE(E)

(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continueq) =B E R B EFE(E)
Debt instruments at FVTOC/ B FEGARMEEH K E
BTA

The Group only invests in debt securities with low credit
risk. The Group’s debt instruments at FVTOCI mainly
comprise listed bonds and notes that are graded in
the top investment grade as per globally understood
definitions and therefore are considered to be low credit
risk investment. The ECL of debt instruments at FVTOCI
was assessed to be immaterial.

AEBEEREEFEERRNER
5o AEEERAVEFARM
EEKRENEBTAIZE/ER
BERERERERRRENR
MEMEFERE - FEEERE
FEERRKE - RAFEFAR
fezmEanER TANAEBAE
EEBRRAEATEE -

Other than concentration of credit risk on trade B?J: IEERBETFREKRES
receivables set out above, bank balances and short- CIRTTHEBR RIF R A THRAT
term deposits which are deposited with several banks % Zf FEEENEmEENE
or financial institutions with high credit ratings, the BTF RO - AR B & (] H A

Group does not have any other significant concentration
of credit risk.

BEAEEETRAR -

Liquidity risk B E %R

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group EERBRDECRARE  AEEH
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash ERERHERREABESZEERE
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to BERBEHN KT  BAEEK

finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects
of fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors
the utilisation of bank borrowings.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020

29. Financial Instruments (continueg)

E

REMBHRESHE

BE_T_TF=-A=T—HILFE

20. £t T B

29b. Financial risk management objectives and policies

29b.

(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required
to pay. The table includes both interest and principal
cash flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating
rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from interest
rate at the end of the reporting period.

MERABEEERRBREGE)

REBEZEE(E)
TRHAIAREBEENTESREE
ZERTAREIHA o lERTIBREAR
SERAHIREESHEEL
RPEHZATRERERER
Blo WRBEFNERARESRE
ﬂ%ﬁ%%ﬁ@ﬂ%'%%
FOANMBRESERBRESNR
ZHRGFHE

=g
i
=
IS

o

Liquidity tables mBET X
Carrying
Weighted Total  amount at
average Less than 3 months 1t02 2to 5 Over 5 undiscounted 31 March
interest rate 3 months  to 1 year years years years cash flows 2020
st 33
i =8 A ABERE ZA=1-H
FHRE  SRZEA E-F -FEZF ZEZRF HEHNLE RELE ZEEE
% HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT FET FET FAT FET FET
2020 —E-%F%
Financial liabilities at RBHRATIRZ
amortised cost SRERE
Trade payables B2 SRR - 83,726 8,268 - - - 91,994 91,994
Other payables H A R 3K - 4,302 - - - - 4,302 4,302
Secured bank loan BERBTER
— variable rate - 2R 1.91 1,465 4,396 5,577 16,143 5,603 33,184 31,161
89,493 12,664 5,577 16,143 5,603 129,480 127,457
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29. Financial Instruments (continueg)

29b. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Liquidity tables (Continued)

2019

Financial liabilities at
amortised cost

Trade payables

Other payables

Secured bank loans
— variable rate

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
bank loan are subject to change if changes in variable
interest rates differ from those estimates of interest
rates determined at the end of the reporting period.

—E-NF
RBERATEZ
tREE
MBS ER
HiER R
RERBTER

7/%\_4

Weighted
average
interest rate

ik

TH7IE
%

215

%?A 1% 3R R

—FFE=-A=1T—BLEFE

2. €M T B

29b. MKEKREEEERBER(E)
mEBELEE(E)
B &A% %K (HE)

Carrying
Total amount at
Less than 3 months 1102 2105 Over 5 undiscounted 31 March
3 months  to 1 year years years years cash flows 2019
—E-NF
=f@A ARERE =A=1-8
SR={E A Z-—F —#Z-F —£ZRF A"FNUE mEEE ZE&EE
HK$000  HK$'000 — HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FAET FET FAET FAET
140,396 439 - - - 140,835 140,835
318 - - - - 318 318
1,478 4,384 5,744 16,571 10,914 39,001 36,285
142,192 4,823 5,744 16,571 10,914 180,244 177,438

Annual Report 2019/2020 — & —

HEERZENHERNRERE Z
AP A bt R
TERZERIAZSHEKGE

(CERURS

& o

HIRER

h&E

ES

—=

g

5 8

137



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2020

29. Financial Instruments (continueg)

29c. Fair value measurements of financial instruments

This note provides information about how the Group

determines fair values of various financial assets.

(i)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are measured at fair
value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets are
measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. The following table gives
information about how the fair values of these
financial assets are determined (in particular, the
valuation technique used), as well as the level of
the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value
measurements are categorised (levels 1 to 3)
based on the degree to which the inputs to the
fair value measurements is observable.

REMBHRESHE

BE-T-TF=A=t+-RLFE

20. £t T B

29c. RAFEFEZERMIA
Uk Bt 5T 12 A &R B 0 ] 78 E B AR
CRHEENATFEZER -

() FEEHNEHEERETHE
BRAFERELSEMEER
AFEE
REBREHR  ~EEEH D
ERMEEDNEAVEFE -
TREHNAUEEZST SR
EERFEMNEHGHZ
PR ERMD) - A RIZ R
Bt EHABEBNABRRE
B BAFEAEIRAT
EERFIREEIM -

Fair value  Valuation techniques
Financial assets Fair value as at hierarchy  and key inputs
tREE ATE AVPEER HERNRBEBARE
31 March 31 March
2020 2019
RZB-BE RIZ—NF
=A=t-B =A=t+—H
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Unit-linked funds Level 2 Redemption value quoted by the
relevant investment funds with
reference to the underlying
assets of the funds
BELEAES E-M FRESRANBREBDREE
SHHBEEE
— classified as financial assets at FVTPL 11,815 18,698
- PERERBREATHEIELERHEE
Listed debt securities Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active
market
THRERES £F-& REBTSMBREER
— classified as debt instruments measured at 25,664 31,108
FVTOCI
- PBRRBRATEFAEMZERERNES
I8
— classified as financial assets at FVTPL 11,463 16,458

- PRREBERRATENEZEREE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2020

29. Financial Instruments (continueg)

REMBHRESHE

BE-Z-BF=A=t+-AL%E

20. £t T B

29c. Fair value measurements of financial instruments

(Continued)

(i)  Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are not measured at
fair value on a recurring basis
The fair value of financial assets and financial

carried at amortised cost,

liabilities, are

determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models which is based on
discounted cash flows analysis using the relevant

prevailing market rates as input.

The directors of the Company consider that the
carrying amounts of the financial assets and
financial liabilities recognised at amortised cost in
the consolidated financial statements approximate
their fair values.

30. Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the Company’s share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) adopted on 8 August 2012 for the primary
purpose of providing incentives to directors of the Company
and eligible employees, the directors and employees of
the Company may, at the discretion of the directors of the
Company, be granted options (the “Options”) to subscribe for
shares in the Company (the “Shares”) at a price determined
by its directors, but shall not be less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheet on the date of the offer of grant, which
must be a trading day; (i) the average closing price of the
Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheet for the five trading days immediately preceding the date
of the offer of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the Shares.

Without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders, the
total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of
the shares of the Company in issue at any point in time, and the
number of shares in respect of which options may be granted
to any individual in any one year is not permitted to exceed 1%
of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in time.

29c. BAFEFEZEMIAGE)

(i) FEBYFRFELZZMEE
BAFESEBHZHEER
EHERZAFE
TREERERAGBZIAF
B REBHKAE - THIR
ERAEERRN  RIFRR
EREDMABRI ISR S

ERE/SBRABUREHE -

ARREZRAR  NEAH
T ¥R 2R IR 8 55 X A HE R
TREENERABEZRE
BEREAERQFEBE -

30. BRRRESTE

BREBERARNAR=ZZ—=—FNAN\BRHZ
Bl (BRETEDEIEANS
RMARREZRAEREERMHER
ARREFAHEBERLERETART
ZEFREEBURBARBZEND - &
BEREZET BIGERTI=%F
Rr&REE ()\RORELOR D BRE
ER(ARRSZH) 2 E(ABZ AT H
BRAFERE)  ((BORBERBEHE
HEREEENAERS A ZFHKH
B (CABE X P B3R R P8 E R 2E) + I (iil)
BpEE -

IREARRRIIRIRIE LA E - ITERE
BREFI BT ZRNDAHETEBER
REINERBEE#TRGN 210% &
REM—FBTRMDEBETENAL
TEBEBARRNMEMBESETRN
Z1% °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2020

30. Share Option Scheme (continueq)

31.

The Scheme will remain in force for a period of ten years from
the date of its adoption. Options granted must be taken up
not later than 28 days after the date of grant. A consideration
of HK$1 is payable on acceptance of the offer of grant of an
option. An option is exercisable on the date when the offer
for the grant of options is made but shall end in any event
not later than 10 years from the date of grant of the options.

No options have been granted under the Scheme since its
adoption.

Reconciliation of Liabilities Arising
from Financing Activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities

REMBHRESHE

BE_FT_FTF=-A=1T—HBHLHFE

30. BIRESE

31.

BREASNEREIRSEEHEBER
AN E BREF0F - ER T2 BRE

WERER 1828 KANRME « BB TIE
BEXUERECRE - EZHARATRE
FriTf R EBREZNEBERT
B R TN EENR L ERER
HARE FT104F

B EIN M
P #E

METHELEZEEHIK

& FE R &\ T R

TRFAVASEEAREZMELENE

arising from financing activities, including both cash and non- BEEY  PIERSKIIFRSEE - BE

cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are EHELAMNABAZEREMEGLNL R

those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will RESRERAEB 2R RERER

be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash FOBARMETIFERERCAE -
flows as cash flows from financing activities.

Interest Dividend Secured
payable payable bank loan Total
A i #

FE A FI 2 FEASBR B RITER ot

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

T T FrET FrET FE T

At 1 April 2018 RZZE—\FMHAH—H — — 41,409 41,409

Financing cash flows BMER SN (994) (23,480) (5,124) (29,598)

Dividend declared B E IR E = 23,480 = 23,480

Finance cost on bank loan R 17 E & 2 B 75 5 X 994 = = 994
At 31 March 2019 and RZE-NF

1 April 2019 ZA=+—8k

—NEFMA—H = = 36,285 36,285

Financing cash flows BB RS m (1,025) (16,772) (5,124) (22,921)

Dividend declared 28K E = 16,772 = 16,772

Finance cost on bank loan  $R{TE 3k Z B A& 1,025 = = 1,025
At 31 March 2020 R-TE-T4F

=A=+—8 - - 31,161 31,161
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %’F 4R 7} BaEEMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 HE_Z-_ZTF=-"A=+T—HIEFE

32. Related Party Disclosures 32.

Expense relating to short-term or low value leases (2019:
operating lease expenses) paid or payable by the Group to
its related parties are as follows:

Immediate holding company BEEEZERAF
Allan Investment Company Limited TwmIEERRAA
Fellow subsidiaries = 2 Kt /& A &
Income Village Limited #EH B R A A
Fair Pacific Limited BERRAE
Ardent Investment Limited HEREBR AR

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had commitments for
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases with immediate holding company and fellow
subsidiaries which are included in Note 33 and fall due as

follows:

Immediate holding company BEEEZERAF
Within one year —FA
Fellow subsidiaries EEXG: RG]
Within one year —F R

Certain directors of the Company have controls in Allan
Investment Company Limited, Income Village Limited, Fair
Pacific Limited and Ardent Investment Limited.

BEEALTIRE

AEEENRKEMNNEHNEEEES
B(CE—NGE KEHREEBR)TEH
EALWT:

2020 2019

S e —F-nF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FHT
900 900

204 204

984 984

1,545 884

R-E-NF=ZA=+—H FAEEH
HEEREBRRRMFARNE AR AHE
MEEHE(CBRBREMEI)ME XM
KA &

KFAERBEAENT

2019
—NEF
HK$'000
FrET

900

1,832

BORREZTRNRIREGRLAA - #
HAERRA ‘AﬁﬁﬁﬁAﬂ&ﬁ"ﬂ%&éﬁ
Eﬁﬁ‘d&?ﬁ? 4 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2020

32. Related Party Disclosures (continuea)

The compensation of key management personnel consists of
director’'s remuneration as set out in Note 9.

The remuneration of directors of the Company is
recommended by the remuneration committee having
regard to the performance of individuals, market trends and
conditions with a view to retain and motivate executives.

33

Operating Leases

The Group as lessee

REMBHRESHE

BE-T-TF=A=t+-RLFE

32.

33.

BAEALTHE®

ITEEEABZHERKEMEIMIZ
EExMe -

ARREEZMETHZERALHRR -
MEBEREN AFMHEZEERER
& BRBRBREDITRAREERS
BT e

ZEHESE

FEMEREBA

2019
—E-hF
HK$'000
T T
Minimum lease payments paid during the year under AFEE L EHE LB E XA
operating leases in respect of rented premises =IEBEHRE 4,507

The Group had commitments for future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases, including
operating leases with related parties, which fall due as
follows:

Within one year —F R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2020

33. Operating Leases (continued)

The Group as lessor

Property rental income earned during the year was
HK$8,811,000 (2019: HK$6,642,000). The property held has
committed tenants for the next three years (2019: two years).

Minimum lease payments receivable on leases are as follows:

Within one year —FA
In the second year F=
In the third year E=F

The Group had contracted with tenants for the following
future minimum lease payments:

Within one year —F R

REMBHRESHE

BE_FT_FTF=-_A=1T—HBHLHFE

. E€EMRE»

AEBEEREHEA
FAMERS WA BSSIEITHEL(ZE
— L 664B2T B TT)  HEMYEE
HEPMEARFRR=ZFRAHN(ZZT—N
FmE) o

HERKNKEBREMNKET:

2020
Sy L
HK$’000
FET
10,280
8,471

2,239

20,990

ZK%.E/EEE7¥(2EJ\ERETJ/\/\—F§E5KE%1E
GER=ERE¢-

2019
—NEF
HK$°000
FrET

4,779

In the second to fifth year inclusive F_FEERT(BEEERT) 4,063

8,842
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2020

34. Capital Commitments

REMBHRESHE

BE_FT_FTF=-A=1T—HBHLHFE

34. EREIE

2020 2019
—E-ERF —E-hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FAETT
Capital expenditure contracted for but not B2 7] 2 EARAER L R
provided in the consolidated financial FREMBmESNEE -
statements in respect of:
— acquisition of property, plant and — BEYE BEK
equipment B 974 876

35. Retirement Benefits Schemes

The subsidiaries operating in Hong Kong participates in both
an “ORSO Scheme” and a “MPF Scheme”. The assets of
the schemes are held separately from those of the Group, in
funds under the control of independent trustees.

The ORSO Scheme is funded by contributions from
employees of 5% of their salaries. The employers will
contribute based on the monthly salaries of employees
according to the following schedule:

35. BIKE R &

BEMB AT 2 ERIEAERERGE
NELFEIRRERE - ZFFTEE
EEAKEEERNAKE  FHREE
HEREAMEHNZBIESHESH -

2mrESEZEE  BARKA/A

B.25% o B XM BEIAT ESIRETE
BRABEEHR 2HFKE:

Rate of contribution

Number of completed years of service 5% B AR 7% £ HA R =E
Not more than 5 years LREAEF 5%
More than 5 years but not more than 10 years ZRAFEBARZN+E 7.5%
More than 10 years ZR+F 10%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %R &S BB RS E K ==

I
For the year ended 31 March 2020 HE_ZT-_ZTF=-A=+—HLEFE

35. RIKE R FT &l )

35. Retirement Benefits Schemes (continueq)

benefit of the
returns after

The employees are entitled to the full
subsidiaries’ contributions and accrued
participating in the ORSO Scheme for 10 years or more, or
at an increased scale of 30% to 90% after participating in
the ORSO Scheme from 3 to 9 years respectively. Where
an employee leaves the employment prior to becoming
fully entitled to the employer’'s contributions, the excess
contributions are forfeited and the employer may utilise the
forfeited contributions to reduce its future contributions. As
at 31 March 2019 and 2020, the Group had no material
unutilised forfeited contributions in the ORSO Scheme which

may be used to reduce the Group’s future contributions.

The MPF Scheme is available to all employees aged 18 to 65
and with at least 59 days of service under the employment
in Hong Kong. The Group contributes at the lower of 5% of
relevant payroll costs monthly to the MPF Scheme, subject
to a maximum amount of HK$1,500 per month for each
employee, which contribution is matched by employees.

The employees of the subsidiaries operating in the PRC are
required to participate in a central pension scheme operated
by the local municipal government. The contributions for the
scheme in the PRC are made based on a percentage of
the average salary as advised by the relevant authority in
the PRC. The contributions are charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of
the central pension scheme. The subsidiaries operating in
the PRC also contributed to a local municipal government
retirement scheme for all qualified employees in the PRC.
The employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at the rates specified in the rules.

The only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
schemes in the PRC is to make the retired contributions under
the schemes. No forfeited contribution is available to reduce
the contribution payable in the future years.

SMAESAERTEZEE  AIEH
FAMBARREBH ZHFE AN
FAB - E2MFHRIEIF - BER
FHI0%ENO%REE ZHKEE - WEE
RARREAME 0B THRATRER - RIZ
HEEAS TO2 Wk T E £ R E A AR IR
ZEFIMBER BN ZHER - R=F—
NERZZEZEF=A=+—H K&
B2 A B AR WSS R0 R A 1R FE
HFER o

RIS BT A 18265 X ER &
BERAVSOAZEEZMN - AEEFAY
REBEFTE ZHKES%EHLEKAK
wH - MBRETIEZAKS A E1,500%8
TC MR EE THREEMER -

FEMBARZEBEFTELMAN K
FFEEZ R RBERBHEE - RPEZ
EHFAEDNDRETEEHEERES
ZFATERMEEHRR - fHRXEHE
FeEakAEtMEEKRERANG R
B RS & ZIRE - LWHKIARE
- BB A R i R BT R KR
Mgl AEERBERET - EX R
B BRI ERAIM L Az st 81 H

ES
R o

AR EE R B AN —F B AR ZRIK
R = I8 B R U 2 A FR AT IRk K 5 5K e
3R -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2020

36. B LA FIE

R -_ZFER TN F=A=+—
B AR ZHBAR @ 2HAEARRD
RIZ2BMEBAR  FHBEWOT:

36. Particulars of Subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 March
2020 and 2019, all of which are wholly-owned subsidiaries
of the Company, are as follows:

Name of subsidiary

Place of incorporation or Issued and fully paid share
establishment operations capital or registered capital

Principal activities

o) TR EMBMYL EERYE CRORBERAJIMER FEEEK
Allan Electric Mfg., Limited Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares and 50,000  Investment holding
TREXHEFRAA B non-voting deferred shares REZK

Allan International Limited*

Allan Mould Manufacturing Limited

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong
RERAHER/EE

Hong Kong/the PRC

100/ & 8 fx 550,000 & £
BELTR?

55,000 ordinary shares of HK$1
each

55,000 FREE1E T2 LR

100 ordinary shares

Investment holding
REER

Manufacturing of plastic

ShRIBEHEERAF B&/HE 1008% & & AR injection moulds
EEBRBIEER
Allan Plastic Mfg., Limited Hong Kong 3,005 ordinary shares Property holding and trading
SREBBRAERLA B 3,005 & 1 ik of household electrical
appliances
RENERHEREES
Allan Trading (HK) Company Limited Hong Kong 270,000 ordinary shares Investment holding
TREH(ER)ERAR Bk 270,0008% & & i REEKR
TRIZFRZE(EMNERAR The PRC* Registered capital of Manufacturing of household
s USD49,600,000 electrical appliances and
1 & A49,600,000% T plastic parts
EERESEREBTM
REIXER)ARD The PRC* Registered capital of Manufacturing of household
s} HK$75,000,000 electrical appliances and
it & A&75,000,000% 7T plastic parts
EERESEREBTM
BENTEEZEHERDA (Note a) The PRC? Registered capital of RMB30,000  Trading of household electrical
BNmEEBSBRAR (M iFa) HE 1 & A A R #30,0007T appliances
HEXEES
Artreal Manufactory Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares Trading of household electrical
HETEBR AR BB 2R L B AR appliances
HEXEES
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2020

36. B ARFH1E @

36. Particulars of Subsidiaries (continueq)

Name of subsidiary

Place of incorporation

or Issued and fully paid share

establishment operations capital or registered capital

Principal activities

WEAREB EMRMY EEYE CERORBERAJIMER FEEHK
Conan Electric Manufacturing Limited ~ Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares Trading of household electrical
RREXZERRAA BB 2Rk & B appliances
HEXEES
Electrical Investments Limited British Virgin Islands/ 1 ordinary share of USD1 Inactive
Hong Kong IREEIETZLER EELK
RERTEE /B
Ever Sources Investment Limited Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares Inactive
ERRERRAA BH 1008 & & iR EERK
Global Express (HK) Limited (Note 5) ~ Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares Inactive
& (FE)BER AR (K 2b) BH 2MRE 5 EERK
Good Eagle Investment Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share Investment holding
EEREERAA BH 1 & 8 Ak REZK
Great Yield Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share Trading of household electrical
RBARAA BB 102 3 ik appliances
HEXEES
BT REBEREXARAA The PRC? Registered capital of Manufacturing of household
H HK$100,000,000 electrical appliances and
it & 100,000,000 1T plastic parts
EEREEER
BREMH
TETERBEEMNERAH The PRC* Registered capital of Manufacturing and trading
H USD3,500,000 of household electrical
it & 43,500,000 7T appliances and plastic parts
EERHERESS
BREMH
Karan Electric Manufacturing Limited Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares Trading of household electrical
FREFHEERAA BB 1000% & 38 % appliances
HEXEES
New Prestige Investments Limited* Hong Kong 1 ordinary share Property investment
B 1R i AR REME
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

]
For the year ended 31 March 2020 HE_ZT-_ZTF=-A=+—HLFE
36. Particulars of Subsidiaries (continueq) 36. B AR FE =
Place of incorporation or Issued and fully paid share
Name of subsidiary establishment operations capital or registered capital Principal activities
WEAREE AMARY EEHYE ERTRAZRAJIMES FEEK
Ngai Shing (Far East) Plastic & Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares and 54,000 Property holding
Metalwares Factory Limited i non-voting deferred shares ¥ A%
ER(ER)EBRIEBERAR 1008% 3 3 Ak %254,0008% & % 2
TR M
Progress Associates Limited* British Virgin Islands/ 1 ordinary share of USD1 Investment in securities
Hong Kong IREEIET 2 EBK HERRE
KERAHE /B
Total Profits Limited British Virgin Islands/ 2 ordinary shares of USD1 each Investment holding
Hong Kong JBREEIE T2 ERBR RERK
KERAHE /B
Warran Electric Manufacturing Limited ~ Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares Inactive
EREXREFRAA BE 100fR & i& R UEEH
Well Sincere Investment Limited* Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares Investment holding
AAKRBRERRARA BE 21 5 Ak RERK
* Direct subsidiaries * BEEHBAF
# Wholly foreign-owned enterprises e E2EINEBEBEDLE
Notes: K aF -
(@)  The subsidiary is established on 25 November 2019. () ZFARRZZE—NE+—A=-+HH
B3I ©
(b)  The subsidiary was deregistered on 16 August 2019. b) ZTFARARZZE—NENA+HFE
SHAEM -
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at RELR B AR ERITEMNERE
the end of the year. Z o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2020

37. Events After the Reporting Period 7. HEHREE

The outbreak of coronavirus disease (“COVID-19”) and
the subsequent quarantine measures as well as the travel
restrictions imposed by many countries have had a severe
negative impact on the operations of the Group, as most of
the Group’s operations are located in Huizhou in Mainland
China. The Group had to stop its manufacturing activities
since January 2020 due to mandatory government quarantine
measures in an effort to contain the spread of the epidemic.

Even though the Group had resumed its manufacturing
activities since 19 February 2020, they are still not operating
at normal capacity due to the delay of logistic arrangement
from its supplier in the PRC and social distancing of its
employees.

In addition, the outbreak of COVID-19 is expected to have
negative/adverse effect to its customers in different aspects,
which in turn, may affect the recoverability of Group’s trade
receivables and other financial assets that are subject to ECL
assessment.

Given the dynamic nature of these circumstances and
unpredictability of future development, the directors of
the Company consider that the financial effects on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements cannot be
reasonably estimated as at the date these consolidated
financial statements are authorised for issue, but affect the
consolidated results for the financial year ending 31 March
2021 and beyond.

7 4R 9% 2 ([COVID-19]) B 15 28 A K BE 1%
B bR B 15 1 DA Re 5T 2 B R /4 [ e O A
Eﬁ%ﬁiﬁﬁ%ﬂ%ﬁﬁ’%lm@%ﬁﬁiﬂﬁéﬁﬁ
BEPE  ARANEBENAD EEHR
ME@EPEX@E%)H ° R EFERENT 58
HERRERE  ZEEITETE T
TE-ARGLERERD  LBHIZE
MEJE -

BEASEE_ZT_FTF_A+LHE
WEEEES  BEARPEERENY
MEHIEEAR E TR - B
I RBEIRIE IEW EBE -

It 5l - COVID-19#) & 3 FB 5 B E TR 77
HHEEFELEAE/ANZE  ERB
KAgE X EAKEN R E H KM
HpeMEEREEBBRN G KD
o

ERELBERNE M EMARIRERD
AAIFEAMYE  ARAEZRS B E
BUGEMBRR A HAKEKA
B mERNOMBEERNE LSRG
BegrEBzEz_T_ —F=A=+—H
RIAKB M REE &7 M5 HmR a2
WM -
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 HE_Z_ZTF=-"A=T—HIEFE

38. A E] B AR N R K

38. Statement of Financial Position and
Reserves of The Company

2020 2019
—E_EH —ET-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FETT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS kRBEE
Property and equipment EY L 7,087 9,060
Interests in subsidiaries M B A B == 76,518 76,518
Amounts due from subsidiaries & W BT B A B 3R IR 131,214 154,409
Club debenture 2HMES 10,705 10,705
225 524 250,692
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Other receivables E Ath fE Uk BR 3R 2,003 2,446
Amounts due from subsidiaries Rl NGIE 2,160 1,846
Tax recoverable JERFIE — 448
Short-term deposits MHTFER 189,282 159,777
Bank balances and cash RITEHR MRS 65,700 17,811
259,145 182,328
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Other payables and accruals H b e FRIE K V NP N 9,820 7,578
Amounts due to subsidiaries AN NGIE 1,155 17,708
Tax liability MIEEE 357 —
11,332 25,286
NET CURRENT ASSETS BFRBEE 247,813 157,042
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HEERRBERE
LIABILITIES 473,337 407,734
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY kRBERE
Deferred tax liability FEERIEEE 10 338
NET ASSETS EEFE 473,327 407,396
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BARRf#E
Share capital fi& 7 33,543 33,543
Reserves & 439,784 373,853
473,327 407,396
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 HE_Z-_ZTF=-"A=+T—HIEFE

38. Statement of Financial Position and 38. XA AFRIM MR RETREE

Reserves of The Company continued) (%)
Movement in the Company’s reserves NEIEER S
Capital Capital
Share redemption contributed Retained
premium reserve surplus profits Total
R R
BRHEE EE#EE  BAERK REEF B

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET

At 1 April 2018 RZZE-N\$MA—-H 109,884 793 28,230 202,054 340,961

Profit and total comprehensive income AAFE & Fil k2 H
for the year uﬁz/\*’\ ok = = = 56,372 56,372
Dividends recognised as distribution R ED K 2 X & = = = (23,480) (23,480)

At 31 March 2019 and 1 April 2019 R-Z—hH%F
=A=t+-Bk
“E-AFEMA—H 109,884 793 28,230 234,946 373,853

Profit and total comprehensive income A& [ & F 2 2 H

for the year W@ = = = 82,703 82,703
Dividends recognised as distribution R /E 2k 2 It & = = = (16,772) (16,772)
At 31 March 2020 R-E_ZF

=H=+—H 109,884 793 28,230 300,877 439,784
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Financial Summary M E

The following table summarises the results, assets and liabilities of TRBGETAEEHZ T TF=A=+—
the Group for the five years ended 31 March 2020. HERABEFEMNEE BEIRAE -

For the year ended 31 March
BE-ZA=+—HLEE
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
ZBIRF —TNF ZE)N\F ZT—t+F —T-RF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FET T T T T T T T T

Revenue = 982,835 1,209,200 1,305,166 1,325,082 1,565,325
(Loss) profit before tax BB AT (&) & A (12,787) 33,852 55,453 84,225 143,012
Taxation i I8 (5,377) (5,733) (8,673) (11,278) (7,356)
(Loss) profit for the year REE (E18) & T (18,164) 28,119 46,780 72,947 135,656
At 31 March
R=BA=+—H
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

—E-EF —FT-NF T )\F —T—+F —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FE T FE T FET FET

Total assets EERE 1,474,772 1,496,758 1,587,421 1,608,184 1,694,186
Total liabilities BERE 308,413 362,388 449,407 489,993 520,352
Net assets BEFE 1,166,359 1,133,870 1,138,014 1,118,191 1,173,834
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